INITIAL PROJECT RESOLUTION
(L2, LLC Project)

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency convened on
Thursday September 1, 2022 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 09.01.2022.04

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (i) ACCEPTING AN APPLICATION
SUBMITTED BY L2, LLC WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN PROJECT (AS
DESCRIBED BELOW); (ii) AUTHORIZING THE SCHEDULING AND
CONDUCT OF A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT;
(iii) DESCRIBING THE FORMS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BEING
CONTEMPLATED BY THE AGENCY; AND (iv) AUTHORIZING THE
NEGOTIATION OF CERTAIN AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE
PROJECT.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by
the Act; and

WHEREAS, L2, LLC, for itself and/or for an entity or entities to be formed (collectively,
the “Company”), has submitted an application to the Agency requesting the Agency’s assistance
with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of a
* leasehold interest in approximately 4.21 acres of real property located at County Route 200 in the
Town of Watertown, New York (the “Land”, being more particularly described as tax parcel No.
73.20-1-2.17); (ii) the planning, design, construction and operation of approximately 30,000
square feet of building space, portions of which will be leased by the Company to (a)
LAWMAN HEATING & COOLING, INC. for operation as a sheet metal and roof
manufacturing facility and (b) DESIGN BUILD INNOVATIONS, LLC for operation as a
fabrication facility, along with interior office and warehousing spaces, exterior utility and site
improvements, parking lots, loading docks, access and egress improvements, signage, curbage,
sidewalks, landscaping and stormwater retention improvements (collectively, the
“Improvements™); (iii) the acquisition of and installation in and around the Land and
Improvements by the Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other items of tangible
personal property (the “Equipment”; and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the
“Facility”); and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision
(15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in

Page 1
-108-



the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility back to the Company
(the “Straight Lease Transaction™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency
desires to schedule and conduct a public hearing (the “Public Hearing™) relating to the Project
and the proposed financial assistance contemplated by the Agency (collectively, the “Financial
Assistance”), such Financial Assistance to include (a) an exemption from all State and local sales
and use taxes with respect to qualifying personal property included in or incorporated into the
Facility or used in the construction and equipping of the Facility; (b) mortgage recording tax
exemption for project financing; and (c) a partial real property tax abatement through the
execution of an agreement with the Agency regarding payments in lieu of real property taxes to
be made for the benefit of the Affected Tax Jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to (i) accept the Application, (ii) authorize the
scheduling and conduct of a public hearing pursuant to and in accordance with the Act, and (iii)
negotiate, but not enter into an Agent and Financial Assistance and Project Agreement (the
“Agent Agreement”), a Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”), a Leaseback Agreement (the
“Leaseback Agreement”), a Payment-in-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement (the “PILOT Agre¢ment”), and
related documents with the Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Company has presented an Application in a form acceptable to the
Agency. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company’s
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the
Act; and

(C)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the
Project, thereby creating significant employment opportunities and critical investment in
Jefferson County, New York, and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in
the Act; and

(D)  The Project will result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or
manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one
area of the State of New York (the “State”) to another area of the State or result in the
abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project located within the State; and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the
Company’s application, to the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to
another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project occupants from removing

Page 2
-109-



such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is reasonably necessary to
preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their respective industries. The
Agency authorizes the issuance of notice letters to applicable municipal officials in accordance
with the Act. :

Section 2. The proposed financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency
includes (a) an exemption from all State and local sales and use taxes with respect to qualifying
personal property included in or incorporated into the Facility or used in the construction and
equipping of the Facility; (b) mortgage recording tax exemption for project financing; and (c) a
partial real property tax abatement through the execution of an agreement with the Agency
regarding payments in lieu of real property taxes to be made for the benefit of the Affected Tax
Jurisdictions.

Section 3. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to negotiate the terms of the Agent
Agreement, Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, PILOT Agreement, and related
documents; provided, the provisions of the rental payments under the Leaseback Agreement
include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or related to the Project and
indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions taken by the Company and/or claims
arising out of or related to the Project.

Section 4. The Agency hereby authorizes the scheduling and conduct a public
hearing in compliance with the Act.

Section S. Harris Beach PLLC, as General and Transaction Counsel for the Agency,
is hereby authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to prepare for submission
to the Agency of all documents necessary to effect the foregoing authorizations.

Section 6. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 7. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately.

Page 3
-110-



The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call,
which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain

" Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. [ ] [ ] [ ] [ |
David J. Converse [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
John Jennings [ ] [ ] [ 1 [ ]
William W. Johnson [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
Lisa L’Huillier [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
W. Edward Walldroff [ ] [ 1 [ ] [ ]
Paul J. Warneck [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.

Pnoe 4
-111-



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) SS:

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held
on September 1, 2022, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true
and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of
the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said
Agency this ___ day of s 2022,

W. Edward Walldroff, (Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Page 5
-112-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

Second 20Mil @ .005%
Balance @ .0025%
Total Fee

SOLAR TEMPLATE/DESKTOP

73,425

-113-

Project Summary 8/18/2022
Project LAWMAN HQ. LOT 10 ( L2,LLC) NAICS-236220
Location LOT 10 CR 200,CORP PARK WATERTOWN , NY |Project Acres Total Acres School General Brown
Tax Parcel 73.20-1-2.17 4.25 Project Type 30,000 Sgq. Ft Office
Current Taxes $1,400.00 Village
| Town Watertown
Total Project Costs 4,895,000 Jobs
Land 345,000 Retained 30
Infrastructure 150,000 Added 10 Three Years
Building - 30000 Sq. FT., 3,000,000 Total 40
Furniture & Fixtures 200,000 Next Five Years
Equipment 1,000,000 Construction Jobs 30
Equip. /NYS Production Current Assessment 71,500 Land
Exemption Final Assessment 900,000
Eng/Arch Fees Jobs
Finance Charges Agency Fee $73,425
Legal Fees App Fee Paid
Soft Costs 200,000
Contingency
|Total 4,895,000 0 0%
Town of 2022
Sales Tax Exemption- Watertown  Tax Rates % Distribution
Total Material 3,500,000 County 12.924846 2021 0.41117068
Town 0 2021 0
4% County Tax 140,000 Genl Brown 18.509414 2020 0.58882932
4% NYS Tax 140,000 31.43426 1
Total Sales Tax Savings 280,000
Mortgage Recording Tax
Est Mortgage Amount 3,000,000
MRT Savings 22,500
3% Escalation
Full Tax Exemption RILOT Tax Without
PILOT Building Payment  Project(Land) County Town School Total
Year 1 28,291 . 75% 7,073 2,248 2,908 0 4,165 7,073
Year 2 29,140 75% 7,285 2,248 2,995 0 4,290 7,285
Year 3 30,014 75% 7,503 2,248 3,085 0 4,418 7,503
Year 4 30,914 75% 7,729 2,248 3,178 0 4,551 7,725
Year5 31,842 75% 7,960 2,248 3,273 0 4,687 7,960
Year 6 32,797 50% 16,398 2,248 6,743 0 9,656 16,398
Year7 33,781 50% 16,890 2,248 6,945 0 9,946 16,890
Year 8 34,794 50% 17,397 2,248 7,153. 0 10,244 17,397
Year 9 35,838 50% 17,919 2,248 % 7,368 0 10,551 17,919
Year 10 36,913 50% 18,457 2,248 7,589 0 10,868 18,457
Year 11 38,021 25% 28,515 2,248 11,725 0 16,791 28,515
Year 12 39,161 25% 29,371 2,248 12,076 0 17,294 29,371
Year 13 40,336 25% 30,252 2,248 12,439 0 17,813 30,252
Year 14 41,546 25% 31,160 2,248 12,812 0 18,348 31,160
Year 15 42,792 25% 32,094 2,248 13,196 0 18,898 32,094
526,179 276,003 33,713 113,485 0 162,519 276,003
52%
JCIDA Fee Calculation
Project- With PILOT 4,895,000
First 10 m@1.5%% 73,425




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

MRB Cost Benefit Calculator

Date August 22, 2022

Project Title L2,LLC (Lawman )

Project Location CR 200 Corp Park Watertown, NY 13601

MRB group

Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool poivered by MRB Group

Summary of Economic Impacts over the Life of the PILOT

$4,895,000

Direct Indirect Total
Jobs 20 10 30
Earningss $2,024,263 $462,412 $24 36,674}
Local Spend! $4,895,000 $1,660,531 $6,555,531
Aggregate over life of the PILOT
Direct Indirect Total
Jobs 40 20 60
Earnings $43,751,616 49,893,292 $53,644,909
Figure 1
Net Benefits
$4,500.000
4,000,000 1
$3,500,000 -
$3.000,000
%2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1.000,000
4500,000
S0
-5500,000 i & o = L K )
o & 3 o & 5 > &
-41,000,000 4& & <& w = 4 A% R\ X o
&
st Benefits (Cosls ilet Benefits

Net Benefits chart will alvays display construction through year 10, irrespective of the length of the PILOT.

Figure 2

Total Jobs

Ongoing

0 10 20 30 40 SO 60 70

¢ Direct ' Indirect

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

Figure 3

Total Earnings

Temporary l,
I

Ongoing

S0 $10,060,090  §20,000,000  $30,000,000 $10,000,000 $50400,L00  $60,080,000

1 Direct Indirect

Ongoing earnings are all earnings aver the lifz of the PILOT.

-114-




Estimated Costs of Exemptions

Property Tax Exemption

Sales Tax Exemption
Local Sales Tax Exemption
State Sales Tax Exemption
Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption
Local Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption
State Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption

Total Costs

State and Local Benefits

Local Benefits

To Private Individuals
Temporary Payroll
Ongoing Payroll
Other Payments to Private Individuals
To the Public
Increase in Property Tax Revenue
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Other Local Municipal Revenue

State Benefits

To the Public
Temporary Income Tax Revenue
Ongoing Income Tax Revenue
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue

Total Benefits to State & Region

Benefit to Cost Ratio

Local
State

Grand Total
*Discounted at 2%

Nominal Value
$250,177

$280,000

$140,000
$1740,000

$22,500

$7,500
$15,000

$552,677

Nominal Value
$56,766,787
$56,131,583

$2,486,674
$53,644,909
$0
$635,204

$242283 -

$17,407
$375514
$0

$2,918,842

$2,918,842
$111,900
$2,414,021
$17,407
$375,514

$59,685,629

Benefit*

$48,462,448
$2,492,323

$50,954,771

Additional Comments from IDA

Current Town of Watertown tax rates escalated by 3% for full taxation over the 15 }eér per"iod.

Does the IDA believe that the project can be accdmplished ina tirﬁely fashion?

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

Yes

MRB | group

Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MR8 Greup

Discounted Value*
$219,300
$280,000
140,000
5140,000

422,500
57,500
$15,000
$521,800

Discounted Value*
$48,462,448
$47,929,284

$2,486,674
$45,442,609
50
$533,164
$197,659
$17,407
$318,098

$0

$2,492,323

$2,492,323
$111,900
$2,044,917
$17,407
$318,098

$50,954,771

Cost* Ratio
$366,800 ’ 132:1
$155,000 16:1

$521,800 98:1

-115-




Application to

Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency (JCIDA)

0 Tax Exempt Bond Financing
0 Taxable Bond Financing
M Lease Leaseback Transaction

Please contact the agency for more information
regarding project eligibility and application process.

Applicant (Company) Name:
L2, LLC

Applicant Address:
206 Ambrose Street, P.O. Box 599, Sackets Harbor, New York 13685

Phone:
315-646-2919

E-mail:
CL.HQ@lawmanhc.com

Application Date:08/16/2022

Internal Use Only
Staff Signature and Date of Submission:
Completed Application Date: Staff Initial

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: July 28, 2022

-116-



Fee Schedule

Updated as of the date of the document

Taxable and Tax Exempt Industrial Development Revenue Bonds

Application Fee:

Fee:

Point of Contact:

A non-refundable fee of $2,500.00 is payable to the JCIDA at the time the
application is submitted. This fee will be credited towards the total fee at closing.

First $10 million — 1.5% of the principal amount of the bond series.
$10 million - $20 million — 1% of the bond series.
Any amount over $20 million — 0.5% of the bond series.

Annual Fee - $1,500.00

David Zembiec - CEO JCIDA+1 (315) 782-5865

Lease Leaseback Transactions

Application Fee:

Fee:

Renewable Energy
Projects:

Point of Contact:

Revised Date:

A non-refundable fee of $2,500.00 is payable to the JCIDA at the time the
application is submitted. This fee will be credited towards the total fee at closing.

With a PILOT: |

First $10 million - 1.5%

Second $10-$20 million - 0.5%

Any amount over $20 million - 0.25%

No PILOT - 25% of the abatement value

Annual Fee - $1,000.00

Application for Re-Assignment of benefits to new ownership - $2,000.00
Annual Administrative Fee - $1,500.00

David Zembiec - CEO JCIDA +1 (315)782-5865

, Revision #;

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-117-



“Scetion I: Applicant Information

Please answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary.

A) Applicant Information-company receiving benefit:

Applicant Name: L2, LLC
Applicant Address: 206 Ambrose Street, PO Box 599, Sackets Harbor, New York 13685

Phone: 319-646-2919 Fax: 315-646-2920
Website: WWW.lawmanhc.com E-mail: CL.HQ@Ilawmanhc.com
Federal [D#: 16-1100145 Nalcs: 236220

Will a Real Estate Holding Company be utilized to own the Project property/facility? Ii] Yes or[] No

What is the name of the Real Estate Holding Company: L2, LLC
Federal ID#: 87-1753612

State and Year or Incorporation/Organization: 2021

List of stackholders, members, or partners of Real Estate Holding Company:

Michael Lundy; Corry Lawler

Renewable Energy Projects: Attach ownership chart and indicate companies that will eventually own
and operate projectNOt Applicable

B) Individual Completing Application:

Name: Corry Lawler

Title: Owner L2, LLC / CEO Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Address: 206 Ambrose Street, PO Box 599, Sackets Harbor, New York 13685
Phone: 9 15-646-2919 Fax: 315-646-2920

E-Mail: CL.HQ@lawmanhc.com

C) Company Contact (if different from Section B above):

Name: Michael Lundy

Title: Owner L2, LLC / President Design Build Innovations, LLC

Address: 206 Ambrose Street, PO Box 599, Sackets Harbor, New York 13685
Phone: 315-646-2919 Fax: 315-646-2920

E-Mail: Mlundy@mlundygroup.com

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-118-



D) Company Counsel:

Name of Attorney: Gerald Stack

Firm Name: Barclay Damon, LLP

Address: 125 E. Jefferson Street, Syracuse, New York 13202

Phone: 315-425-2700 Fax: 315-703-7377

E-mail: 9Stack@barclaydamon.com

E) Identify the assistance being requested of the Agency (select all that apply):

1. Exemption from Sales Tax [® Yes or[] No
2. Exemption from Mortgage Tax M Yes or[] No
3. Exemption from Real Property Tax (®] Yes or[] No
4. Tax Exempt Financing * [ Yes or[@ No

* (typically for not-for-profits and qualified small manufacturers)

F) Applicant Business Information_(check appropriate category):

Corporation x] Partnership O
Public Corporation ] Joint Venture ]
Sole Proprietorship  [] Limited Liability Company ~ []

Other (please specify)

Year Established: L2, LLC - 2021; LHC - 1978; DBI - 2021

State in which Organization is established: New York (a")

G) List all applicant stockholders, members or partners with % of ownership greater than 5%

(including all parent entities) [INCLUDE CHART)

NOTE: All applicants must include a current ownership chart reflecting equity ownership. Applications
will not be accepted or deemed complete without this information.

The Agency's acceptance of this application will be specific to the existing equity ownership of the
applicant and the Agency's ultimate approval is likewise specific to the applicant equity ownership (the
taxpayer beneficiaries of the Agency's financial assistance). The Agency's approval of any proposed
project shall be specific to the equity ownership of the Company at the time of application to the Agency.
The Agency's approval of any financial assistance, including real property tax exemptions, is non-

transferrable and may not be assigned or assumed without the Agency's prior written consent. Any

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

~119-



PAGE 4 - SECTION 1 - ITEM G

L2, LLC - OWNER

Michael Lundy Owner 50%
Corry Lawler Owner 50%
Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. - TENANT
Corry J. Lawler President / Treasurer / CEO 55%
Patrick J. Lawler Vice President 20%
Neil J. Lawler Secretary 20%
Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. 5%
Design Build Innovations, LLC (DBI, LLC) - TENANT

Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. / Corry Lawler Managing Member

The Lundy Group / Michael Lundy President 9.9%
Corry Lawler Member 90.1%

-120-



transfer in excess of fifty percent (50%) of the equity voting interests of the Company (including all
parent companies of the Company through and including the ultimate taxpayer(s) owning or controlling
the Company), other than to a Related Person of the Company, shall be deemed an assignment and
require the prior written consent of the Agency. Any proposed assignment shall require the prior written
consent of the Agency upon written application no less than 45 days prior to a regularly scheduled

meeting of the Agency.

Name - % of ownership
See Attached

H) Applicant Business Description:

Describe in detail company background, products, customers, goods and services. Description is critical
in determining eligibility:COﬂStrUCt'on / Development

Estimated % of sales within Jefferson County: 50%

Estimated % of sales outside Jefferson County, but within New York State: 10%
Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S.: 40% (pnor to 2022)

Estimated % of sales outside the U.S. 0%

(*Percentage to equal 100%)

I) What percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services are purchased from
firms in Jefferson County. Include list of vendors, raw material suppliers and percentages for each.

Provide supporting documentation including estimated percentage of local purchases.
See attached

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-121-



Section'11: Project:Description & Details

A) Project Loocation:

List your current operation(s) locations in Jefferson County:
Sackets Harbor; Pamelia; Leray

List your current operation(s) locations in New York State:
Sackets Harbor; Pamelia; LeRay; Lakeville

Provide the Property Address of the proposed Project:
Lot 10 - Jefferson County Corporate Park

County Route 200, Watertown, New York 13601

Will the completion of the Project result in the removal, or reduction of an industrial or manufacturing

plant of the Applicant from: one area of New York State to Jefferson County; or within Jefferson County?

[ Yes or No [J
If Yes, please provide details CONsolidation of all facilities

Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the

Applicant located within New York State?

[H] Yes or No il
If Yes, please provide details O€ll all existing facilities

Will the Proposed Project cause Applicant’s current operations within Jefferson County to be closed or

be subjected to reduced activity?

[J Yes or No [H]

If Yes, please provide details

If Yes to any of the above three (3) questions, Applicant must complete Section IV of this Application.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-122-



PAGE 6 - SECTION Il - PROJECT LOCATION

Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

206 Ambrose Street
Sackets Harbor, New York 13685

23791 Lawler Drive
Watertown, New York 13601

29701 Martin Road North
Evans Mills, New York 13637

Corporate Office
Will Sell Facility

Offices /Sheet Metal Shop
Will Sell Facility

Leased Office / Warehouse
Will Terminate Lease

-123-

# of Personnel

14



Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment, removal, or reduction of an industrial or
manufacturing plant of a closely aligned competitor from one area of New York State or Jefferson

County?
[J Yes or No =

If Yes, please provide details

SBL Number for Property upon which proposed Project will be located: 73.20-1-2.17

What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site? $1,418.67

If amount of current taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each:

Land: $71,500.00 Buildings(s): $0.00

¥* If available please include a copy of current tax bill.

Are Real Property Taxes current? [M] Yes or [] No. Ifno, please explain

Town/City/Village: Town of Watertown School District: VVatertown

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title to the Project site? [B] Yes or[] No

If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site:

Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site? [ ] Yes or[] No

B) Please provide narrative of project and the purpose of the project (new build, renovations,
and/or equipment purchases). Identify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and
all tenants and any/all end users: (This information is critical in determining project eligibility):

Erect new 30,000 sf office and manufacturing facility for consolidation of all operations

Lawman will be the anchor tenant for the consolidation of 3 offices to one location. LHC will expand its'

sheet metal and roofing manufacturing capacity by investing in additional manufacturing equipment.

DBI will be a co-tenant it's fabrication processes. In conjunction with the structure, the exterior parking

and site needs will be met with appropriate paved areas including storm water control for the entire site

Describe the reasons why the Agency’s Financial Assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project
will have on the Applicant’s business or operations. Focus on competitiveness issues, project

shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determination will be based in part on your answer (attach
additional pages if necessary); Appravals and grants will provide financial justification to consolidale in Jefferson County

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-124-



TOWN OF WATERTOWN: TOWN & COUNTY 2022 TAXES

I FISCAL YEAR: 01/01/2022 to 12/31/2022 WARRANT DATE: 12/14/2021 STATE AID - COUNTY:  $29,717,521.00 TOWN: $377,665.00
. . ' BANK BILL NUMBER PAGE
MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO: 50016 TOF 1
PROPERTY INFORMATION:
Pm‘&tfggx ° TAX MAP #:225800 73.20-1-2.17
22867 CO. RTE. 67 DIMENSION:  8.80 acres
ATERTOWN, NY. 13601 ’ Rs: 1 CLASS: Vacantindus
(315)782-8248 ’ ADDRESS: CoRte 200
SCHOOL: General Brown
PROPERTY OWNER: FULL MARKET VALUE: 124348.00
UNIFORM % OF VALUE: 51.50
ASSESSMENT: 71500
Lundy Construction LLC

18841 US Rte 11
Watertown, NY 13601

If you feel the assessment on your property is too high, you have the right to ﬁle a grievance to Iower lt fnr future tax bills. For information,

please contact your assessor for the booklet "How to File a Complnmt on Your Assessment" and to inquire about exemptions. Any reduction In
assessment will NOT be reflected on this bill.

( LEVY DESCRIPTION TAX LEVY e RATE TAXABLE VALUE AMOUNTDUE |
COUNTY TAXABLE 62556720 1.8000 | 12.92484600 71500.00 924.13
WATERTOWN ZONE1 FIRE 1037281 13.9000 |  3.02572900 71500.00 216.34
WATERTOWN SEWER 3 0 0.0000 |  0.00000000 0.00 212.09
WATERTOWN WATER1 0 00000 | o. oooooooo _0.00_ 6611
[ ‘ PAYMENTS RECEIVED ]
Receipt#: 1755 Date Paid:02/01/2022 1st Installment Payment
Tax: 472.89 Penalty: 0.00 Surcharge: 42.56 Notice Fee:0,00 Ret. Check Fee: 0,00
Cash: 0.00 Check: 515.45 Check #: 1893

Received from Lundy Construction LLC - Via Mail: $515.45

TOTAL TAXES PAID TO DATE: $472.89 REMAINING TAXES DUE EXCLUDING ANY INTEREST OR PENALTY: $945.78

Printed on: 02/02/2022 11:22:40 AM -125-



Please confirm by checking the box, below, if there is a strong possibility that the Project would not
be undertaken but for the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency?

M@ Yes or[] No
If Yes, please provide details: VVithout financial assistance, operations may stay

as they are or may consider consolidation to another community

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the Agency, then
provide a statement in the space provided below indicating why the Project should be undertaken

by the Agency:
Consolidation allows for growth of the company; to increase efficiency;

employment opportunities and additional profitability.

If the Applicant is unable to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on
the Applicant?
Without financial assistance will not move forward with consolidaton

plan and may consider alternate community

C) Will Project include leasing any equipment [H] Yes or[] No

If Yes, please describe:

TBD

D) Site Characteristics:

Describe the present use of the proposed Project site:
Vacant site in Corporate Park

Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed location? [M] Yes or[] No

If Yes, please provide local zoning reference that applies:
Preliminary site plan submission to planning board has been approved

For Renewable Energy Projects — provide acres [ ] leased or [_] owned: N/A

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-126-



Describe the present zoning/land use:

Describe required zoning/land use, if different:

If a change in zoning/land use is required, please provide details/status of any request for change of
zoning/land use requirements:

N/A

Is the proposed project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is

complicating the development/use of the property? If yes, please explain:
No, Clean Phase 1 environmental assessment performed in 2014

Have site plans been submitted to the appropriate planning board or department?

[ Yes or[] No

** If yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the related State Environmental Quality
Review Act (“SEQR”) Environmental Assessment Form that may have been required to be submitted
along with the site plan application to the appropriate planning department. Please provide the Agency

with the status with respect to any required planning department approval:

See Attached - previous negative declaration 2014

Has the Project received site plan approval from the planning department? [ Yes or[@ No.
If Yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the planning department approval along with

the related SEQR determination.

E) Has a Phase I Environmental Assessment been prepared, or will one be prepared with respect to the

proposed project site? [M] Yes or[] No If yes, please provide a copy.

F) Have any other studies or assessments been undertaken with respect to the proposed project site that
indicate the known or suspected presence of contamination that would complicate the site’s development?

] Yes or[] No. If yes, please provide copies of the study

G) Provide any additional information or details: PreViOUSIV completed deep hole
testing and rock topography

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date; 7/28/2022

-127-



H) Select Project Type for all end users at project site (you may check more than one):

** Please check any and all end users as identified below.

Industral x] Back Office O
Acquisition of Existing Facility [] Retail ]
Housing ] Mixed Use |l
Equipment Purchase [x] Facility for Aging ]
Multi-Tenant ] Civic Facility (not for profity [
Commercial O Other Corporate Office [x]

** Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes
with respect to either economic activity indicated below, complete the Retail Questionnaire contained in
Section III of the Application.

Retail Sales: [] Yes or [l] No Services: [H] Yesor[] No
For purposes of this question, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under
Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the retail sale

of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (ii) sales of a
service to customers who personally visit the Project.

I) Project Information:

Estimated costs in connection with Project:

Renewable Energy Projects use Cost Section on page 11.

1. Land and/or Building Acquisition: $345,000.00
4.25 acres square feet

2. New Building Construction: 30,000 square feet s 3,000,000.00

3. New Building Addition(s): square feet 3 N/A

4. Infrastructure Work $150.000.00

5. Reconstruction/Renovation: square feet $ N/A

6. Manufacturing Equipment: $1,000,000.00

7. Non-Manufacturing Equipment (fumniture, fixtures, etc.): $200,000.00

8. Soft Costs: (professional services, etc.): $200,000.00

9. Other, Specify: $N/ A
TOTAL Capjtal Costs: $4895,000.00

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-128-



Renewable Energy Project: Project Costs

2.

11

12.

14.

Project size MWac MWdc

Solar equipment costs 5

(panels, racking, all solar equipment to inverters)

Site equipment and FF&E costs 5

(on-production equipment from inverter to interconnection,

including site fencing, security and other equipment)

Site work and land preparation costs $

(earthwork, roadways, landscaping, and site plan '

improvements, highway cuts, wetland mitigation and

other onsite infrastructure costs)

All interconnection costs whether direct or indirect $

expense through utility

All pre-development costs, including planning, engineering, $

site plan and permitting

Battery storage costs b

Battery storage capacity MWac MWdc

All other soft costs including legal, planning and permitting h)
. Community benefit payments or impact fees 5

Community adder 5

Community or market transition credit b
. Total annual lease amount for project 5

Other (please identify): 5

Total: §

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this Application? [] Yes or[] No

If Yes, describe particulars:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

-129-

Document Date: 7/28/2022



Project refinancing; estimated amount

(for refinancing of existing debt only)

Sources of Funds for Project Costs:

Bank Financing:

Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits)
Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable)

Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable)

Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal
grants and tax credits)

Identify each state and federal grant/credit:
State Grants

2nd Mortgage (ABC Organizations)

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs:

N/A

$2,500.000.00

s 1,395,000.00

. N/A
N/A

1,000,000.00

$
,000.00
¢ 500.00
$
$
$

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this Application? [H] Yes or[] No

If Yes, describe particulars:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

-130-

Document Date: 7/28/2022



13

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit: Amount of mortgage that would be subject to mortgage
recording tax:

Mortgage Amount (include sum total of construction/permanent/bridge financing): $

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit (product of mortgage
Amount as indicated above multiplied by __ %): b

Construction Cost Breakdown:

Total Cost of Construction $ (sum of 2,3,4,5, and/or 7 in Question 1, above)

Cost for materials: 3

% sourced in Jefferson County: %

% sourced in New York State % (including Jefferson County)
- 14

List major material suppliers if known

Cost for labor: §
Expected Full-Time Equivalent Jobs during construction
Expected Total Labor Hours during construction
List major subcontractors, if known

Sales and Use Tax: Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to State and local Sales
and Use tax - said amount to benefit from the Agency’s Sales and Use Tax exemption benefit:

$

Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit (product of % multiplied by the figure, above):

$

“** Note that the estimate provided above will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation
and Finance. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the
Applicant to undertake the total amount of investment as proposed within this Application, and that the
estimate, above, represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency may
authorize with respect to this Application. The Agency may utilize the estimate, above, as well as the
proposed total Project Costs as contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance
that will be offered.

Real Property Tax Benefit:

Identify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property tax exemption benefit OTHER
THAN the Agency’s PILOT benefit:

Revised Date: , Revision #:;

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-131-



JCIDA PILOT Benefit: Agency staff will indicate the amount of PILOT Benefit based on estimated
Project Costs as contained herein and anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation, including the annual
PILOT Benefit abatement amount for each year of the PILOT benefit year and the sum total of PILOT
Benefit abatement amount for the term of the PILOT as depicted in Section 1I(I) of the Application.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources: Agency staff will calculate the
percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources based upon Sources of Funds for Project
Costs as depicted above in Section 1I(1) of the Application.

J) For the proposed facility, please indicate the square footage for each of the uses outlined below:

*If company is paying for FFE for tenants, please include in cost breakdown

Square Footage Cost % of Total Cost of Project
Manufacturing/Processing 19,200 1,250,000.00
Warehouse 4,800 500,000.00
Research & Development N/A
Commercial N/A
Retail (see section K) N/A
Office 5,000 1,500,000.00
Specify Other 1,000 250,000.00

K) What is your project timetable (Provide dates):

1. Start date: acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities: ASAP
2. Estimated completion date of project: 09/01/2023

3. Project occupancy — estimated starting date of operations: 09/01/2023

4. Have construction contracts been signed? [] Yes or [B] No
5. Has Financing been finalized? [] Yes or ] No

** If constructions contracts have been signed, please provide copies of executed construction contracts

and a complete project budget. . The complete project budget should include all related construction costs

totaling the amount of the new building construction, and/or new building addition(s), and/or renovation.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-132-



L) Is the proposed Project necessary to expand Applicant employment: [H Yes or[ ] No

Is the proposed Project necessary to retain existing employment: M Yes or[ ] No
M) Employment Plan (Specific to the proposed project location):
Current # of jobs at |IF FINANCIAL IF FINANCIAL
proposed project ASSISTANCE IS ASSISTANCE IS
location or to be GRANTED - project [GRANTED - project
relocated at project [the number of FTE  [the number of FTE
location jobs to be RETAINED [jobs to be CREATED
upon THREE Years
jafter Project
completion
**Full time
(FTE) 30 1 O

** By statute, Agency staff must project the number of FTE jobs that would be retained and created if the

request for Financial Assistance is granted. Agency staff will project such jobs over the Three-Year time

period following Project completion. convert part-time jobs into FTE jobs by dividing the number of

part-time jobs by two (2). A FTE job is one that works the equivalent of a 40-hour week for 48 weeks. A

part-time job is one that works the equivalent of a 20-hour week for 24 weeks.

Salary and Fringe Benefits for Jobs to be Retained and Creafed:

ategory of Jobs to be FTE Average Salary or Range of Salary [Average Fringe Benefits or,
Retained and Created Range of Fringe Benefits
Management 5 $120,000.00 $10,000.00
Professional 13 $80,000.00 $10,000.00
Administrative 5] $50,000.00 $10,000.00
Production 10 $50,000.00 $7,000.00
Transportation/Logistics 2 $45,000.00 $7,000.00
Warehousing
Other 5 $40,000.00 $6,000.00
TOTAL 40

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-133-




16

Employment at other locations in County/City/Town/Village: (provide address and number of employees
at each location):

Location Address 5813 Stone Hill Road, Lakeville, NY

Full time 10
Part Time 0
Total 10

N) Will any of the facilities described above be closed or subject to reduced activity? [B] Yes or [] No

** If any of the facilities described above are located within the State of New York, and you answered

Yes to the question, above, you must complete Section 1V of this Application.

** Please note that the Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections, among other items, to
determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to retain the

number of jobs and create the number of jobs with respect to the Project as set forth in this Application.

O) Is the proposed Project reasonably necessary to prevent the Applicant from moving out of New York
State? [ Yes or[] No.  Out of Jefferson County?  [M Yes or[] No.

If yes, please explain and identify the other locations being investigated, type of assistance offered and
provide supporting documentation if available: Have not yet exPlored other locations

P) What competitive factors led you to inquire about sites outside of Jefferson County or New York

State?
Past occupancy and familiarity of other locations

Q) Have you contacted or been contacted by other Local, State and/or Federal Economic Development
Agencies? [H] Yes or[] No.

Have you applied, or intend to apply for additional Grant Funding, or tax incentives? [B] Yes or[] No.
If yes, please identify which agencies and what other Local, State and/or Federal assistance and the

assistance sought and dollar amount that is anticipated to be received: 'Nitiating conversation with ESD

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-134-



“Section 111:Retail Questionnaire

To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency
requires additional information if the proposed Project is one where customers personally visit the
Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase services. '

Please answer the following:

A. Will any portion of the Project (including that portion of the cost to be financed from equity or
other sources) consist of facilities or property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of
goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

[] Yes or @] No. If the answer is yes, please continue. If no, proceed to section V

For purposes of Question A, the term “retail sales™ means (i) sales by a registered vendor under
Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the
retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or
(ii) sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

B. What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property

primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project?
%. If the answer is less than 33% do not complete the remainder
of the retail determination and proceed to section V.

If the answer to A is Yes AND the answer to Question B is greater than 33.33%, indicate which
of the following questions below apply to the project:

1. Will the Project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation [] Yes or [M] No.

2. Is the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors from outside
the economic development region (list specific County or ED region) in which the project will be

located?

[ Yes or [@] No
If yes, please provide a third-party market analysis or other documentation supporting your
response.

3. Is the predominant purpose of the Project to make available goods or services which would
not, but for the Project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the municipality within which
the proposed Project would be located because of a lack of reasonably accessible retail trade
facilities offering such goods or services?

D Yes orli] No

Revised Date: 5 Rcyision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-135-



18

If yes, please provide a third-party market analysis or other documentation supporting your

response.
4. Will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall number of
permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York?

E] Yes orl:l No.

If yes, explain

5. Is the Project located in a Highly Distressed Area? [ Yes or[] No

Scction V- Inter-Municipal Move Determination

The Agency is required by State law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting
from Agency Financial Assistance results in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the
Applicant from one area of New York State to another area of the State; or in the abandonment of one or
more plants or facilities of the Applicant located within the New York State , Agency Financial
Assistance is required to prevent the Applicant from relocating out of the New York State, or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the Applicant’s competitive position in its respective industry.

Explain how the Agency’s Financial Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of

New York State, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupant’s competitive position in its
respective indusu—y; Consolidating to one facility will help preserve the competitive edge and efficiencies of the companies for each respective

business while reducing costs associated with maintaining 4 separate locations, i.e., energy costs, building & property maintenance, taxes, etc.
Lawman had an office in Virginia for 10+ years, and without assistance would consider all options, including relocation to Virginia

Section V. Adaptive: Reuse Determination

(Adaptive Reuse is the process of adapting old structures or sites for new purposes)
Are you applying for a tax incentive under the Adaptive Reuse Program? [] Yes or [H] No
If No, please proceed to next Section

A) What is the age of the structure (in years)

B) Has the structure been vacant or underutilized for a minimum of 3 years? (Underutilized is defined as a
minimum of 50% of the rentable square footage of the structure being utilized for a use for which the structure
was not designed or intended) [] Yes or [] No. How many years?

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-136-



19

C) Is the structure currently generating insignificant income? (Insignificant income is defined as income that is
50% or less than the market rate income average for that property class) ] Yes or[[] No
If yes, please provide dollar amount of income being generated, if any

D) Does the site have historical significance? [] Yes or[] No

E) Are you applying for either State/Federal Historical Tax Credit Programs? [] Yes or[[] No. Ifyes, provide
estimated value of tax credits

F) Summarize the financial obstacles to development that this project faces without Agency or other public
assistance. Please provide the Agency with documentation to support the financial obstacles to development
(you will be asked to provide cash flow projections, documenting costs, expenses and revenues with and
without IDA and other tax credits included indicating below average return on investment rates compared to
regional industry averages):

G) Briefly summarize the demonstrated support that you intend to receive from local government entities. Please
provide the Agency documentation of this support in the form of signed letters from these entities:

H) Please indicate other factors that you would like the Agency to consider such as: structure or site presents
significant public safety hazard and or environmental remediation costs, site or structure is located in distressed
census tract, structure presents significant costs associated with building code compliance, site has historical
significance, site or structure is presently delinquent in property tax payments:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-137-



Scetion VI: l'stlm.m of Real Ploput\ TaxiAbatement Bendfits and Percentage of Projeet Costs

financed from Public Sector:sources

** Section V of this Application will be: (i) completed by IDA Staff based upon information

contained within the Application, and (i) provided to the Applicant for ultimate inclusion as part

of this completed Application.
PILOT Estimate Table Worksheet
Dollar Value | Estimated County Tax Local Tax Rate School Tax
of New New Assessed | Rate/1000 (Town/City/Village)/1000 | Rate/1000
Construction | Value of
and Property
Renovation Subject to
Costs IDA*
$3,500,000.00 | $4,000,000.00
*Apply equalization rate to value
PILOT % County Local School Total Full Tax | Net
Year Payment | PILOT PILOT PILOT PILOT Payment | Exemption
Amount | Amount | Amount w/o
PILOT
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
TOTAL

*Estimates provided are based on current property tax rates and assessment values

Revised Date:

, Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-138-




21

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector Table Worksheet:

Total Project | Estimated | Estimated Estimated Value of | Total of Other Public
Cost Value of Value of Sales | Mortgage Tax Incentives (Tax Credits,
PILOT Tax Incentive | Incentive Grants, ESD Incentives,
etc.)

Calculate %

(Est. PILOT + Est. Sales Tax+ Est. Mortgage Tax+ Other)/Total Project Costs: %

JCIDA will also complete a Cost-Benefit analysis using information contained within this
Application, and available to the Public.

Scction ' VII Representations, Certifications and Indemnification

CorryJ. Lawler (name of CEO or other authorized representative of Applicant)
confirms and says that he/she is the  Owner/CEO (title)  of
L2, LLC/LHC, Inc. /DB, LLC (name of corporation or. other entity) named in the attached

Application (the “Applicant”), that he/she has read the foregoing Application and klnows the contents
thereof, and hereby represents, understands, and otherwise agrees with the Agency and as follows:

A. Job Listings: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal Law,
the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance
from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, new
employment opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York
State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the “DOL”) and with the
administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the “JTPA Entities™) of the service delivery
area created by the federal job training partnership act (Public Law 97-300) (“JTPA”) in
which the Project is located.

B. First Consideration for Employment: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New Yark
General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining
agreements, where practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate
in JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment
opportunities created as a result of the Project.

C. Annual Sales Tax Filings: In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York General
Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any sales
tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance from the Agency, in accordance with

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-139-



22

Section 874(8) of the General Municipal Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be
filed, with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form
prescribed by the Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax
exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors retained by the
Applicant. Copies of all filings shall be provided to the Agency.

D. Employment Reports: The Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with
the Agency, at least annually or as otherwise required by the Agency, reports regarding the
number of people employed at the project site, salary levels, contractor utilization and such
other information (collectively, “Employment Reports”) that may be required from time to
time on such appropriate forms as designated by the Agency. Failure to provide Employment
Reports within 30 days of an Agency request shall be an Event of Default under the PILOT
Agreement between the Agency and Applicant and, if applicable, an Event of Default under
the Agent Agreement between the Agency and Applicant. In addition, a Notice of Failure to
provide the Agency with an Employment Report may be reported to Agency board members,
said report being an agenda item subject to the Open Meetings Law.

E: The Applicant acknowledges that certain environmental representations will be required at
closing. The Applicant shall provide with this Representation, Certification and
Indemnification Form copies of any known environmental reports, including any existing
Phase | Environmental Site: Assessment Report(s) and/or Phase Il Environmental
Investigations. The Agency may require the Company and/or owner of the premises to
prepare and submit an environmental assessment and audit report, including but not
necessarily limited to, a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment Report and a Phase II
Environmental Investigation, with respect to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the
owner and/or the Applicant. All environmental assessment and audit reports shall be
completed in accordance with ASTM Standard Practice E1527-05, and shall be conformed
over to the Agency so that the Agency is authorized to use and rely on the reports. The
Agency, however, does not adopt, ratify, confirm or assume any representation made within
reports required herein.

-F. The Applicant and/or the owner, and their successors and assigns, hereby release, defend and
indemnify the Agency from any and all suits, causes of action, litigations, damages, losses,
liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or
expenses of any kind or nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys’,
consultants’ and experts’ fees) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or
asserted or awarded against the Agency, resulting from or arising out of any inquiries and/or
environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on behalf of the Applicant
and/or the owner pursuant hereto, including the scope, level of detail, contents or accuracy of
any environmental assessment, audit, inspection or investigation report completed hereunder
and/or the selection of the environmental consultant, engineer or other qualified person to
perform such assessments, investigations, and audits.

G. Hold Harmless Provision: The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the Applicant shall be
and is responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in connection with any actions required
to be taken by the Agency in furtherance of the Application including the Agency’s costs of
genenral counsel and/or the Agency's bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application,
the proposed Project it describes, the attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds or other

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-140-



23

transaction or agreement are ultimately ever carried to successful conclusion and agrees that
‘the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the Agency
harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or expense incurred by: (i) the
Agency's examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application,
regardless of whether or not the Application or the proposed Project described herein or the
tax exemptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted upon by the
Agency; (ii) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or installation of the proposed Project
described herein; and (iii) any further action taken by the Agency with respect to the
proposed Project including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of
action and attorney's fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions
which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing. Applicant hereby understands and agrees,
in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York General Municipal Law and the policies
of the Agency that any New York State and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the
Applicant and approved by the Agency, any mortgage recording tax exemption claimed by
the Applicant and approved by the Agency, and/or any real property tax abatement claimed
by the Applicant and approved by the Agency, in connection with the Project, may be subject
to recapture and/or termination by the Agency under such terms and conditions as will be
established by the Agency and set forth in transaction documents to be entered into by and
between the Agency and the Applicant. The Applicant further represents and warrants that
the information contained in this Application, including without limitation information
regarding the amount of the New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefit,
the amount of the mortgage recording tax exemption benefit, and the amount of the real
property tax abatement, if and as applicable, to the best of the Applicant’s knowledge, is true,
accurate and complete.

H. This obligation includes an obligation to submit an Agency Fee Payment to the Agency in
accordance with the Agency Fee policy effective as of the date of this Application

L. By executing and submitting this Application, the Applicant covenants and agrees to pay the
following fees to the Agency and the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s
bond/transaction counsel, the same to be paid at the times indicated:

2,500 — "
(i) a non-refundable $ application and publication fee (the “Application Fee”);
(ii) a$ expense deposit for the Agency’s Counsel Fee Deposit.
(iii)  Unless otherwise agreed to by the Agency, an amount equal to percent
( %) of the total project costs. ’

(iv)  All fees, costs and expenses incurred by the Agency for (1) legal services, including but
not limited to those provided by the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction
counsel, thus note that the Applicant is entitled to receive a written estimate of fees and costs of the
Agency’s general counsel and the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel; and (2) other consultants
retained by the Agency in connection with the proposed project, with all such charges to be paid by
the Applicant at the closing.

J. If the Applicant fails to conclude or consummate the necessary negotiations, or fails, within a

reasonable or specified period of time, to take reasonable proper or requested action, or
withdraws, abandons, cancels, or neglects the Application, or if the Applicant is unable to

Revised Date: , Revision #;

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-141-



24

find buyers willing to purchase the bond issue requested, or if the Applicant is unable to
facilitate the sale/leaseback or lease/leaseback transaction, then, upon the presentation of an
invoice, Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents, or assigns all actual costs incurred by
the Agency in furtherance of the Application, up to that date and time, including but not
necessarily limited to, fees of the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s
bond/transaction counsel.

K. The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that all payment liabilities to the Agency and the .
Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond and/or transaction counsel as expressed
in Sections H and I are obligations that are not dependent on final documentation of the
transaction contemplated by this Application.

L. The cost incurred by the Agency and paid by the Applicant, the Agency’s general counsel
and/or bond/transaction counsel fees and the processing fees, may be considered as a cost of
the Project and included in the financing of costs of the proposed Project, except as limited by
the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code with respect to tax-exempt bond
financing.

M. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency is subject to New York State’s Freedom of
Information Law (FOIL). Applicant understands that all Project information and records

related to_this application are potentially subject to disclosure under FOIL subject to

limited statutory exclusions.

N. The Applicant acknowledges that it has been provided with a copy of the Agency’s Policy for
Termination of Agency Benefits and Recapture of Agency Benefits Previously Granted (the
“Termination and Recapture Policy”). The Applicant covenants and agrees that it fully
understands that the Termination and Recapture Policy is applicable to the Project that is the
subject of this Application, and that the Agency will implement the Termination and
Recapture Policy if and when it is so required to do so. The Applicant further covenants and
agrees that its Project is potentially subject to termination of Agency financial assistance
and/or recapture of Agency financial assistance so provided and/or previously granted.

0. The Applicant understands and agrees that the provisions of Section 862(1) of the New York
General Municipal Law, as provided below, will not be violated if Financial Assistance is
provided for the proposed Project:

§ 862. Restrictions on funds of the agency. (1) No funds of the agency shall be used in
respect of any project if the completion thereof would result in the removal of an industrial or
manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of the
state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located
within the state, provided, however, that neither restriction shall apply if the agency shall
determine on the basis of the application before it that the project is reasonably necessary to
discourage the project occupant from removing such other plant or facility to a location
outside the state or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the project
occupant in its respective industry.

P. The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the owner, occupant, or operator receiving

Financial Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial compliance with applicable
local, state and federal tax, worker protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations.

Revised Date: , Revision #:;

Document Date: 7/28/2022

- -142-



25

The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the submission of any knowingly false or
knowingly misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any Financial
Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount equal to all or part of any tax exemption
claimed by reason of the Agency’s involvement the Project.

-The Applicant confirms and hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this Application, the

Applicant is in substantial compliance with all provisions of Article 18-A of the New York
General Municipal Law, including, but not limited to, the provision of Section 859-a and
Section 862(1) of the New York General Municipal Law.

The Applicant and the individual executing this Application on behalf of Applicant
acknowledge that the Agency and its counsel will rely on the representations and covenants
made in this Application when acting hereon and hereby represents that the statements made
herein do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements contained herein not misleading.

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON  )ss.:

Corry J. LaWIGr , being first duly swom, deposes and says:

1.

That 1 am the CEO / Owner (Corporate Office) of Lawman Heating & Cooling; DBI, LLC; L2, LLC

(Applicant) and that | am duly authorized on behalf of the Applicant to bind the Applicant.

That I have read the attached Application, I know the contents thereof, and that to the best of
my knowledge and belief, this Application and the contents of this Application are true,

accurate and complete. A

Fofficen)

Subscribed and affirmed to me under penalties of perjury

this_I/, day of August ,20_.
h/ﬁb/zu Aot

ol PP P N

(Notaty Public)

' ) Notary Public, State of NewYork

; Commission Expires Ocl. 10,2

ROBIN D ROZANSKI
No.01R05050381

Qualified in Jefferson County
2]

Revised Date:

, Revision #;

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-143-



INITIAL PROJECT RESOLUTION
(Three Mile Bay Ventures LLC Project)

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency convened on
Thursday September 1, 2022 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 09.01.2022.05

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (i) ACCEPTING AN APPLICATION
SUBMITTED BY THREE MILE BAY VENTURES LLC WITH RESPECT TO
A CERTAIN PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED BELOW); (ii) AUTHORIZING THE
SCHEDULING AND CONDUCT OF A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT
TO THE PROJECT; (iii) DESCRIBING THE FORMS OF FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE BEING CONTEMPLATED BY THE AGENCY; (iv)
ADOPTING FINDINGS WITH RESPECT TO THE STATE
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT (“SEQRA”); AND (v)
AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION OF CERTAIN AGREEMENTS
RELATING TO THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by
the Act; and

WHEREAS, THREE MILE BAY VENTURES LLC, for itself and/or for an entity or
entities to be formed (collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an application to the Agency
requesting the Agency's assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the
acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in approximately 57.68 acres of real property
located at 7828 NYS Route 12E in the Town of Lyme, New York (the “Land”, being more
particularly described as tax parcel No. 60.08-1-24.1); (ii) the planning, design, construction and
operation of an approximately 10,000 square foot event-center destination facility, including five
(5) cottages and laundromat space, along with utility and site improvements, parking lots, access
and egress improvements, signage, curbage, sidewalks, landscaping and stormwater retention
improvements (collectively, the “Improvements™); (iii) the acquisition of and installation in and
around the Land and Improvements by the Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other
items of tangible personal property (the “Equipment”; and, collectively with the Land and the
Improvements, the “Facility”); and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the
meaning of subdivision (15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain

Pnoe 1
“144-



a leasehold interest in the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility
back to the Company (the “Straight Lease Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency
desires to schedule and conduct a public hearing (the “Public Hearing™) relating to the Project
and the proposed financial assistance contemplated by the Agency (collectively, the “Financial
Assistance”), such Financial Assistance to include (a) an exemption from all state and local sales
and use taxes with respect to the qualifying personal property included in or incorporated into the
Facility or used in the construction and equipping of the Facility, (b) a mortgage recording tax
exemption for financings undertaken to construct the Facility, and (c) a partial real property tax
abatement through the execution of an agreement with the Agency regarding payments in lieu of
real property taxes to be made for the benefit of the Affected Tax Jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act, Article
8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto at 6
NYCRR Part 617, as amended (collectively referred to as “SEQRA”), the Agency must satisfy
the applicable requirements set forth in SEQRA, as necessary, prior to making a final
determination whether to undertake the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Lyme Planning Board (the “Planning Board”), acting as “lead
agency” (as such term is defined under SEQRA), previously reviewed the Project pursuant to
SEQRA and issued a “negative declaration” (as such term is defined under SEQRA) with respect
to the Project (the “Negative Declaration”, a copy of which, along with related Environmental
Assessment Form, or “EAF”), is attached hereto as Exhibit A); and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to (i) accept the Application, (ii) authorize the
scheduling and conduct of a public hearing pursuant to and in accordance with the Act, and (iii)
negotiate, but not enter into an Agent and Financial Assistance and Project Agreement (the
“Agent Agreement”), a Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”), a Leaseback Agreement (the
“Leaseback Agreement”), a Payment-in-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), and
related documents with the Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Company has presented an Application in a form acceptable to the
Agency. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company's
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the
Act; and

Pnoo 2
-145-



(C)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the
Project, thereby creating significant employment opportunities and critical investment in
Jefferson County, New York, and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in
the Act; and

(D)  The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or
manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one
area of the State of New York (the “State”) to another area of the State or result in the
abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project located within the State; and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the
Company's application, to the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to
another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project occupants from removing
such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is reasonably necessary to
preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their respective industries; and

(E) Based upon a review of the Application, EAF and the Negative Declaration
submitted to the Agency, the Agency hereby:

6)) consents to and affirms the status of the Planning Board as Lead Agency
for review of the Project, within the meaning of, and for all purposes of complying with
SEQRA; and

(ii)  ratifies the proceedings undertaken by the Planning Board pursuant to
SEQRA with respect to the construction and equipping of the Project pursuant to
SEQRA, including the Negative Declaration; and '

(iii)  Based upon the review by the Agency of the EAF, Negative Declaration
and related documents delivered by the Company to the Agency and other
representations made by the Company to the Agency in connection with the Project, the
‘Agency hereby finds that (a) the Project will result in no major impacts and, therefore, is
one which may not cause significant damage to the environment; (b) the Project will not
have a “significant effect on the environment” (as such quoted term is defined under
SEQRA); and (c) no “environmental impact statement” (as such quoted term is defined
under SEQRA) need be prepared for this action. This determination constitutes a
“negative declaration” (as such quoted terms are defined under SEQRA) for purposes of
SEQRA.

Section 2. The proposed financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency
includes (i) an exemption from all state and local sales and use taxes with respect to the
qualifying personal property included within the Project or used in the acquisition, construction
or equipping of the Project, (ii) a mortgage recording tax exemption for project financing and
(iii) a partial real property tax abatement through the execution of an agreement with the Agency
regarding payments in lieu of real property taxes to be made for the benefit of the Affected Tax
Jurisdictions.

Praoo R

-146-



Section 3. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to negotiate the terms of the Agent
Agreement, Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, PILOT Agreement, and related
documents; provided, the provisions of the rental payments under the Leaseback Agreement
include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or related to the Project and
indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions taken by the Company and/or claims
arising out of or related to the Project.

Section 4. The Agency hereby authorizes the scheduling and conduct a public
hearing in compliance with the Act.

Section 5. Harris Beach PLLC, as General and Transaction Counsel for the Agency,
is hereby authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to prepare for submission
to the Agency of all documents necessary to effect the foregoing authorizations.

Section 6. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 7. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll
call, which resulted as follows: -

Yea Nay Absent Abstain

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.
David J. Converse
John Jennings
William W. Johnson
Lisa L'Huillier

W. Edward Walldroff
Paul J. Warneck

e ——
e e e e el e e
11— ———
e e e e i
[ N N W e o W |
[ I S O T ST S N Iy
e ——
e e e e e ]

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.

Paoe 4
-147-



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) SS:

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held
on September 1, 2022, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true
and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of
the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said
Agency this ___ day of , 2022,

W. Edward Walldroff, (Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Page 5
-148-



EXHIBIT A

SEORA MATERIALS

Paoe 6
-149-



Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project and Setting

Instructions for Completing Part 1

Part 1 is to be completed by the applicant or project sponsor. Responses become part of the application for approval or funding,
are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.

Complete Part | based on information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information; indicate whether missing information does not exist,
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to

update or fully develop that information.

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B. In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that
must be answered either *“Yes™ or “No™. If the answer to the initial question is “Yes", complete the sub-questions that follow. If the
answer to the initial question is “No”, proceed to the next question. Section F allows the project sponsor to identify and attach any
additional information. Section G requires the name and signature of the applicant or project sponsor to verify that the information

contained in Part lis accurate and complete.

A. Project and Applicant/Sponsor Information.

Name of Action or Project:
Sally Port View - Venue Facility

Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map):
7828 NYS 12E (Tax Parcel 60.08-1-24.1), in vicinity of Three Mile Bay, NY 13693

Brief Description of Proposed Action (include purpose or need):

Three Mile Bay Ventures LLC plans to construct an approximately 250-Seat Venue Facility in the Town of Lyme, The property will consist of a venue
facility (+/- 13,000 square feet), 5 Cabins, Laundry Facility, Support Center, Parking Areas, Construction of a potable waterline, and a Sewer Pump Station
(property owner owned and operated). Additionally, the Town of Lyme's Water District #2 will be extended to accommodate this tax parcel. The proposed

project area is depicted in the attached map.

Name of Applicant/Sponsor: Telephone: 315-649-2788
T f L 1. -
SRRSLe E-Mail: gpenvisor@townoflyme.com
Address: 12175 NYs Route 12E
City/PO: chaumont State: \y Zip Code: 43¢5,
Project Contact (if not same as sponsor; give name and title/role): Telephone: 315.649-2788
Terry Countryman } E-lY[ai]: supervisor@townoflyme.com
Address:
12175 NYS Route 12E
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Chaumont NY 13622
Property Owner (if not same as sponsor): Telephone:
E-Mail:
Address:
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Page 1 of 13
FEAF 2019

-150-




B. Government Approvals

B. Government Approvals, Funding, or Sponsorship. (“Funding” includes grants, loans, tax relief, and any other forms of financial

assistance.)

Government Entity If Yes: Identify Agency and Approval(s) Application Date
Required (Actual or projected)
a. City Counsel, Town Board, EYesCINo |Town of Lyme Board APR 2022 (Projected)

or Village Board of Trustees

b. City, Town or Village EYes[CINo | Town of Lyme Planning Board OCT 2021 (Actual)
Planning Board or Commission
c. City, Town or CIYeskZINo
Village Zoning Board of Appeals
d. Other local agencies OYeskINo
e. County agencies Y eskINo
f. Regional agencies OYesINo
g. State agencies lYes[INo NYS DOT, NYS DEC, NYS DOH NYS DOT, NYS DEC, NYS DOH - APR 2022
(Projected)
h. Federal agencies CIYespANo
i. Coastal Resources.
i. Is the project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront area of a Designated Inland Waterway? EYes[INo
ii. Ts the project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program? O Yes#INo
iii. Is the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area? O YeskINo
C. Planning and Zoning
C.1. Planning and zoning actions.
Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or regulation be the []YeskZINo
only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the proposed action to proceed?
e If Yes, complete sections C, F and G.
e If No, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part 1
C.2. Adopted land use plans.
a. Do any municipally- adopted (city, town village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site EYesCINo
where the proposed action would be located?
If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommcndatlons for the site where the proposed action OYeskNo
would be located?
b. Is the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example: Greenway; [CJYeskINo
Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated State or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;
or other?)
If Yes, identify the plan(s):
OYeskZINo

c. Is the proposed action located wholly or partially within an area listed in an adopted municipal open space plan,
or an adopted municipal farmland protection plan?
If Yes, identify the plan(s):

Page 2 of 13

-151-




C.3. Zoning

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance. A Yes[INo
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable overlay district?
AR - Agriculture & Rural Residence (See attached Zoning District Map)

b. Is the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit? Ml Yes[ONo
c. Is a zoning change requested as part of the proposed action? OYesiANo
If Yes,

i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site?

C.4. Existing community services.

a. In what school district is the project site located? (T) Lyme CSD

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?
Jefferson County Sheriff Depariment, New York State Troopers

¢. Which fire protection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
Three Mile Bay Fire Company and Chaumont Volunteer Fire Department

d. What parks serve the project site?
n/a

D. Project Details

D.1. Proposcd and Potential Development

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed, include all
components)? Commerical

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? 57 acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 15 acres
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 0 acres
c. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use? [ YeskZINo
i. If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expansion and identify the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,
square feet)? % Units:
d. Is the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision? [Yes ¥INo
If Yes, ¢

i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)

ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed? [CJYes[CONo
iii. Number of lots proposed?
iv. Minimum and maximum proposed lot sizes? Minimum Maximum

e. Will the proposed action be constructed in multiple phases? . OYeskNo
i. If No, anticipated period of construction: : 6 months
ii. If Yes:
e  Total number of phases anticipated
e  Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition) month year
e Anticipated completion date of final phase month year

e  Generally describe conncctions or relationships among phases, including any contingencies where progress of one phase may
determine timing or duration of future phases: »

Page 3 of 13

-152-



f. Does the project include new residential uses? OYesANo
If Yes, show numbers of units proposed.

One Family Two Family Three Family Multiple Family (four or more)

Initial Phase
At completion

of all phases
g. Does the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)? HAYes[INo
If Yes,

i. Total number of structures 7

ii. Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure: 32 hheight; 106 width; and 122 length
ifi. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled: 12932 square feet
h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result in the impoundment of any OYesiANo

liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?

If Yes,

i. Purpose of the impoundment:
i1. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water: ] Ground water [] Surface water streams [_]Other specify:

ifi. If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.

iv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment. Volume: million gallons; surface area: acres

v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure: height; length
vi. Construction method/materials for the proposed dam or impounding structure (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):

D.2. Project Operations
a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both? [ _]Yesp/]No
(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)
If Yes:
i .What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging? .
ii. How much material (including rock, earth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be removed from the site?
e Volume (specify tons or cubic yards):

e  Over what duration of time?
iif. Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be excavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials? Oyes[JNo
If yes, describe.

v. What is the total area to be dredged or excavated? acres
vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time? acres
vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? feet
[Dyes[No

viii. Will the excavation require blasting?
ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan:

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment [JYespiNo
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?

If Yes:
i. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic

description): :

Page 4 of 13

-153-



ii. Describe how the proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of channels, banks and shorelines. Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:

iii. Will the proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments? [JYes[INo
If Yes, describe:

iv. Will the proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegetation? [ Yes[CINo
If Yes: :

e acres of aquatic vegetation proposed to be removed:

* expected acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion:
e purpose of proposed removal (e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access):

e proposed method of plant removal:

e if chemical/herbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s):

v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation following disturbance:

c. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water? MYes [ No
If Yes:
i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day: 3480 gallons/day
ii. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply? BAYes No
If Yes:
e Name of district or service area: Village of Cape Vincent Water Filtration Plant
o Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal? M Yes[INo
e Is the project site in the existing district? CJYesgINo
e Is expansion of the district needed? M Yes[INo
» Do existing lines serve the project site? OOYeskINo
iii. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project? BYes TINo
If Yes:

e Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

Water District #2 will be extended from the existing district to accommadate this property at the cost of the developer.

e Source(s) of supply for the district: Town of Lyme

iv. Is a new water supply district or service arca proposed to be formed to serve the project site? [ YeskINo
If, Yes:
e Applicant/sponsor for new district:

* Date application submitted or anticipated:

»  Proposed source(s) of supply for new district:
v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project:

vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or private), what is the maximum puniping capacity: gallons/minute.
d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes? B Yes[INo
If Yes:

i. Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day: 3480 gallons/day

ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated (e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and
approximate volumes or proportions of each):

Sanitary Wastewater

ifi. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities? ‘YeskNo
If Yes:
e  Name of wastewater treatment plant to be used:

e  Name of district:

e Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project? OYes[INo

e Is the project site in the existing district? CYes[No

e [s expansion of the district needed? [dYes[No
Page 5 of 13

-154-



e Do existing sewer lines serve the project site? Yes[ONo

‘e Will a line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project? [1Yes[INo
If Yes:

¢ Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

iv. Will a new wastewater (sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site? OYesiANo
If Yes:

e  Applicant/sponsor for new district:

e Datc application submitted or anticipated:

. What is the recciving water for the wastewater discharge?
v. If public facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed

receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge or describe subsurface disposal plans):
Wastewater will be collected and treated on-site using a septic system.

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste:

Not applicable

c. Will the proposed action disturb more than one acre and create stormwater runoff, either from new point pHYes[INo
sources (i.c. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point
source (i.c. sheet flow) during construction or post construction?

If Yes:
i. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?

Square feetor __ 3  acres (impervious surface)
Square feet or __57  acres (parcel size)

ii. Describe types of new point sources.On-site parking lots and buildings

iit. Where will the stormwater runoff’ be directed (i.c. on-site stormwater management facility/structures, adjacent properties,

groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?
Through stormwater treatment areas and then to Off-Site surface waters — Three Mile Bay

s If to surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:
Chaumont Bay

e Will stormwater runoff flow to adjacent properties? OYesANo
iv. Does the proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater? EYes[INo
f. Does the proposed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emlssnons including fuel AYes[INo

combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?

If Yes, identify:
i. Mobile sources during project operations (e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)

During construction operations, heavy equipment will produce air emissions from fuel combustion.

ii. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant, crushers)
Heavy equipment during construction includes: Dozers, trackhoes, and hauling trucks to be used. No permanent air emissions are proposed.

ifi. Stationary sources during operations (e.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)

g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f (above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit, [JYespNo
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit?

If Yes
i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area? (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet OyesCINo

ambient air quality standards for all or some parts of the year)
ii. In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:

o Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide (CO,)
. Tons/year (short tons) of Nitrous Oxide (N,0)
° Tons/year (short tons) of Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)

. Tons/year (short tons) of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SFs)
o Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflourocarbons (HFCs)
. Tons/year (short tons) of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

Page 6 of 13

-155-



h. Will the proposed action generate or emit methane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants, [JYestANo
landfills, composting facilities)?
If Yes:

i. Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric):

ii. Describe any methane capture, control or elimination measurcs included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or
electricity, flaring):

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as [IYestANo
quarry or landfill operations?
If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock particulates/dust):

j- Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial [YespANo
new demand for transportation facnlmes or services?
If Yes:
i. When is the peak traffic expected (Check all that apply):  []Morning [ Evening [OWeekend
. O Randomly between hours of to

ii. For commercial activities only, projected number of truck ters/day and type (e.g., semi trailers and dump trucks):

ii. Parking spaces:  Existing Proposed Net increase/decrease

iv. Does the proposed action include any shared use parking? ClyesCINo
v. If the proposed action includes any modification of existing roads, creation of ncw roads or change in existing access, describe:

vi. Are public/private transportation service(s) or facilities available within % mile of the proposed site? [Yes[]No

vii Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric [ ]Yes[ ]No
or other alternative fueled vehicles?

viii. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommodations for connections to existing ~ []Yes[ JNo
pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action (for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand kAYes[JNo
for energy?
If Yes:

i. Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action:

9000 kW per year

ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project (e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local utility, or
other):
National Grid

ifi. Will the proposed action require a new, or an upgrade, to an existing substation? [JYespANo

1. Hours of operation. Answer all items which apply.

i. During Construction: ii. During Operations:
* Monday - Friday: 0700 - 1800 e  Monday - Friday: (THUR-FRI) 1100 - 2200
e Saturday: 0700 - 1800 e  Saturday: 1100 - 2200
¢ Sunday: e  Sunday: ) 1100 - 2200
¢ Holidays: e  Holidays:
Page 7 0of 13

-156-




m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels during construction,
operation, or both?

If yes:

i. Provide details including sources, time of day and duration:

K Yes[ONo

Ambient noise will be exceeded during construction only while the using heavy-machinery. Time of day and duration vary day-to-day, but will be within the

hours of 0700 - 1800. No exceeding ambient noises will be produced during normal operations.

ii. 'Will the proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen? [YesANo
Describe:
n. Will the proposed action have outdoor lighting? K Yes[INo
If yes:
i. Describe source(s), location(s). height of fixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest occupied structures:
All outdoor lighting will be “all dark sky" compliant. All lighting will be affixed to the buildings or in the parking lot.
ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen? OYesNo
Describe:
o. Daes the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day? OYesANo
If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissions, and proximity to nearcst
occupied structures:
p- Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleum (combined capacity of over 1,100 gallons) OYesANo
or chemical products 185 gallons in above ground storage or any amount in underground storage?
If Yes:
i. Product(s) to be stored
ii. Volume(s) per unit time (e.g., month, year)
iti. Generally, describe the proposed storage facilities:
q. Will the proposed action (commercial, industrial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides, [ Yes pANo
" insecticides) during construction or operation?
If Yes:
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):
ii. Will the proposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices? O Yes [INo
K Yes [INo

r. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal
of solid waste (excluding hazardous materials)?

If Yes:
i. Describe any solid waste(s) to be generated during construction or operation of the facility:
e  Construction: 50 tons per total construction (unit of time)
e  Operation : 1 tons per 2 weeks (unit of time)

ii. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials to avoid disposal as solid waste:

e Construction; Recycle-able materials will be separated from common waste and disposed of accordingly.

e  Operation: __Recycle-able materials will be separated from common waste and disposed of accordingly.

iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:

Construction: Recycle-able materials will be separated from common waste and disposed at the nearest Recycling & Waste Management

facility.

¢ Operation:

Recycle-able materials will be separated from common waste and disposed al the nearest Recycling & Waste Management

facility,

Page 8 of 13

- 187 -




s. Does the proposed action include construction or modification of a solid waste management facility? [ Yes 4 No

If Yes:
i. Type of management or handling of waste proposed for the site (e.g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfill, or

other disposal activities):

ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:

@ Tons/month, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or
° Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment
iii. If landfill, anticipated site life: years

t. Will the proposed action at the sité involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous [ ]Yesp/qNo

waste?
If Yes:
i. Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility:

ii. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents:

iii. Specify amount to be handled or generated tons/month

iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of ha7ardom constituents:

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous waste facility? Cyes[INo
If Yes: provide name and location of facility:

If No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent to a hazardous waste facility:

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.1. Land uses on and surrounding the project site

a. Existing land uses.

i. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining and near the project site.
[0 Urban [ Industrial [J Commercial [] Residential (suburban)  E4 Rural (non-farm)
[0 Forest B4 Agriculture B4 Aquatic [ Other (specify): .

ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.

Land use or Current Acreage After Change
Covertype Acreage Project Completion (Acres +/-)
e Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious
surfaces 0 4 *3
e Forested 0 0 0
e  Meadows, grasslands or brushlands (non- 57 &4 3
agricultural, including abandoned agricultural) _
e  Agricultural 0 0 0
(includes active orchards, field, greenhousc etc.)
e  Surface water features 0 0 0
(lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, etc.)
e  Wetlands (freshwater or tidal) 0 0 0
e Non-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill) 0 0 0
e Other
Describe:
Page 9 of 13

-158-



c. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation? O Yes[2INo
i. If Yes: explain:

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed OYeskAANo
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?

If Yes,
i. Identify Facilities:

e. Does the project sitc contain an existing dam? YeskANo
If Yes:
i. Dimensions of the dam and impoundment: .
e Dam height: feet
e Dam length: feet
e Surface area: acres
e Volume impounded: gallons OR acre-feet
ii. Dam'’s existing hazard classification:
iii. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:
f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility, [JYesk/INo

or does the project site adjoin property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?
If Yes:

i. Has the facility been formally closed? [JYes[J No
e If yes, cite sources/documentation: ;
ii. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:
iii. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities:
g. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin [JYeskANo

property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?

If Yes:
i. Describe waste(s) handled and waste management activities, including approximate time when activities occurred:

lh. Potential contamination history. Has there been a reported spill at the proposed project site, or have any [JYeskq No
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site?
If Yes:
i. Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site OYes[ONo
Remediation database? Check all that apply:
[J Yes — Spills Incidents database Provide DEC ID number(s):
[ Yes — Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC ID number(s):

[J Neither database ,
ii. If site has been subject of RCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:

iii. Is the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database? ClyesCINo
If yes, provide DEC ID number(s):

iv. If yes to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, describe current status of site(s):

Page 10 of 13

~159-



v. Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting property uses? OYes[INo
e Ifyes, DEC site ID number: '

s Describe the type of institutional control (e.g., deed restriction or easement):
e Describe any use limitations:

¢ Describe any engineering controls:
e Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place? [OJYes[INo

o Explain:

E.2. Natural Resources On or Near Project Site

a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site? 7 feet

b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site? [JYeskANo
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings?

&
o

c. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site: Kingsbury silty clay 29.2 %

Vergennes silty clay 34 %
%

d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site? Average: 1.5 feet

¢. Drainage status of project site soils:/] Well Drained: 40 % of site
A Moderately Well Drained: 1.8 % of site
A Poorly Drained 48 % of site

f. Approximate proportion of proposed action site with slopes: b4 0-10%: 925 % of site
10-15%: 75 % of site
[[] 15% or greater: % of site

g. Are there any unique geologic features on the project site? [JYesp/INo

If Yes, describe:

h. Surface water features.
i. Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers, B Yes[INo

ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site? [JYeskNo
If Yes to either i or i/, continue. If No, skip to E.2.i. -
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any fedcral, Myes[INo

state or local agency?
iv. For each identified regulated wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information:

e  Streams: Name Classification
®  Lakes or Ponds: Name Lake Ontario/Chaumont Bay Classification Lake
®  Wetlands: Name Approximate Size
®  Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC)
v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation of NYS water quality-impaired B Yes [INo
y o p q p
waterbodies?

If yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired:
Lake Ontario Shoreline, Eastern: PCBs, Mirex, Dioxin

i. Is the project site in a designated Floodway? ClYes/No

j. Is the project site in the 100-year Floodpléin? : M Yes[INo

k. [s the project site in the 500-year Floodplain? : CIYesgZNo

}f l\s} the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer? [Yesk/No
es:

i. Name of aquifer:

Page 11 of 13

-160-



m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:

‘Deer Various Small Bird Species Seasonal Migratory Birds
n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community? [JYesk/No
If Yes:

i. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation):

ii. Source(s) of description or evaluation:

ifi. Extent of community/habitat:

e  Currently: acres
¢ Following completion of project as proposed: acres
e  Gain or loss (indicate + or -): acres
o. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal govermment or NYS as k1 Yes[JNo
endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?
If Yes:

i. Species and listing (endangered or threatened):

Endangered: Indiana Bat has habitats within Jefferson County, NY during all seasons of the year.

p. Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by NYS as rare, or as a species of OYeskANo
special concern?

If Yes:
i. Species and listing:

q. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing? [JYespINo
If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use:

E.3. Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site

a. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to [dYeskNo
Agriculture and Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 304?
If Yes, provide county plus district name/number:

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present? OYeskINo
i. If Yes: acreage(s) on project site?

ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s):

c. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National [CdYesANo
Natural Landmark? '
If Yes:
i. Nature of the natural landmark: [ Biological Community [ Geological Feature

ii. Provide bricf description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent:

d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area? [JYeskINo
If Yes:
i. CEA name:

ii. Basis for designation:

iii. Designating agency and date:

Page 12 of 13

-161-



e. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district O YeskAI No
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner of the NYS
Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the State Register ot Historic Places?

If Yes:

i. Nature of historic/archacological resource: [JArchaeological Site OHistoric Building or District
ii. Name:
iii. Bricf description of attributes on which listing is based:

f. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for CYesANo
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

g. Have additional archaeological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site? [dYespANo

If Yes:

i. Describe possible resource(s):

ii. Basis for identification:

h. Is the project site within fives miles of any officially designated and publicly accessible federal, state, or local dYespANo

scenic or aesthetic resource?
If Yes:

i. Identify resource:
ii. Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,

etc.):

iii. Distance between project and resource: miles.

i. Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers [ YeskANo

Program 6 NYCRR 666?
If Yes:

i. Identify the name of the river and its designation:
ii. Is the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 666? [Yes[INo

F. Additional Information
Attach any additional information which may be needed to clarify your project.

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus any
measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them.

G. Verification :
I certify that the information provided is true to the best of my knowledge.

Applicant/Sponsor Name- Town of Lyme Date . 2 7/ 3 / Q-D"J_.'Z/

< ==
Signature V A‘QA’E’JJ , mrryCoumryman Title Supervisor

PRINT FORM Page 13 of 13

~162-



Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 2 - Identification of Potential Project Impacts

Project :
Date :

Agency Use Only [If applicable]

Part 2 is to be completed by the lead agency. Part 2 is designed to help the lead agency inventory all potential resources that could
be affected by a proposed project or action. We recognize that the lead agency's reviewer(s) will not necessarily be environmental
professionals. So, the questions are designed to walk a reviewer through the assessment process by providing a series of questions that
can be answered using the information found in Part 1. To further assist the lead agency in completing Part 2, the form identifies the
most relevant questions in Part 1 that will provide the information needed to answer the Part 2 question. When Part 2 is completed. the
lead agency will have identified the relevant environmental areas that may be impacted by the proposed activity.

If the lead agency is a state agency and the action is in any Coastal Area, complete the Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding

with this assessment.

Tips for completing Part 2:
e Review all of the information provided in Part 1.

s Review any application, maps, supporting materials and the Full EAF Workbook.

e  Answer each of the 18 questions in Part 2.

e Ifyou answer “Yes” to a numbered question, please complete all the questions that follow in that section.
o If you answer “No” to a numbered question, move on to the next numbered question.

e  Check appropriate column to indicate the anticipated size of the impact.

e Proposed projects that would exceed a numeric threshold contained in a question should result in the reviewing agency

checking the box “Moderate to large impact may occur.”
e  The reviewer is not expected to be an expert in environmental analysis.

e  Ifyou are not sure orundecided about the size of an impact, it may help to review the sub-questions for the general

question and consult the workbook.

e  When answering a question consider all components of the proposed activity, that is, the "whole action”.
o Consider the possibility for long-term and cumulative impacts as well as direcl impacts.
e Answer the question in a reasonable manner considering the scale and context of the project.

1. Impacton Land

Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of, [CNo M YES
the land surface of the proposed site. (See Part 1. D.1)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - j. If “No”, move on to Section 2.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part ] small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to water table is z
E2d M O
less than 3 feet.
b. The proposed action may involve construction on slopes of 15% or greater. E2f %
¢. The proposed action may involve construction on land where bedrock is exposed, or | E2a O
generally within 5 feet of existing ground surface.
d. The proposed action may involve the excavation and removal of more than 1,000 tons | D2a O
of natural material.
e. The proposed action may involve construction that continues for more than one year | Dle O
or in multiple phases. .
f. The proposed action may result in increased erosion, whether from physical D2e, D2q (%} O
disturbance or vegetation removal (including from treatment by herbicides).
g. The proposed action is, or may be, located within a Coastal Erosion hazard area. Bli % O
h. Other impacts: O O
Page 1 of 10
FEAF 2019

-163-




Impact on Geological Features
The proposed action may result in the modification or destruction of, or inhibit

access to, any unique or unusual land forms on the site (e.g., cliffs, dunes, No [yEs
minerals, fossils, caves). (See Part 1. E.2.g)
If “Yes"”, answer questions a - ¢. If “No”, move on to Section 3.
Relevant No, or Moderate’
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. Identify the specific land form(s) attached: E2g o o
b. The proposed action may affect or is adjacent to a geological feature listed as a E3c ] o
registered National Natural Landmark.
Specific feature:
c. Other impacts: a] o
3. Impacts on Surface Water
The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other surface water [Ono MYES
bodies (e.g., streams, rivers, ponds or lakes). (See Part 1. D.2, E.2.h)
If “Yes", answer questions a - I. If “"No"”, move on to Section 4.
: Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may create a new water body. D2b, D1h || O
b. The proposed action may result in an increase or decrease of over 10% or more than a D2b %] O
10 acre increase or decrease in the surface area of any body of water.
c. The proposed action may involve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material D2a %] O
from a wetland or water body.
d. The proposed action may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or E2h || a
tidal wetland, or in the bed or banks of any other water body.
e. The proposed action may create turbidity in a waterbody, either from upland erosion, | D2a, D2h 17| O
runoff or by disturbing bottom sediments.
f. The proposed action may include construction of one or more intake(s) for withdrawal | D2c %] O
of water from surface water.
g. The proposed action may include construction of one or more outfall(s) for discharge | D2d 7| O
of wastewater to surface water(s).
h. The proposed action may cause soil erosion, or otherwise create a source of D2e . O
stormwater discharge that may lead to siltation or other degradation of receiving
water bodies.
i. The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or E2h O
downstream of the site of the proposed action.
j- The proposed action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or D2q. E2h O
around any water body.
k. The proposed action may require the construction of new, or expansion of existing, Dla, D2d o
wastewater treatment facilities.

Page 2 of 10

-164-



1. Other impacts:

Impact on groundwater

The proposed action may result in new or additional use of ground water, or
may have the potential to introduce contaminants to ground water or an aquifer.
(SeePart 1. D.2.a, D.2.c,D.2.d, D.2.p, D.2.q, D.2.1)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If “No”, move on to Section 5.

[No

A YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action may require new water supply wells, or create additional demand | D2c O
on supplies from existing water supply wells.

b. Water supply demand from the proposed action may exceed safe and sustainable D2c O
withdrawal capacity rate of the local supply or aquifer.
Cite Source:

c. The proposed action may allow or result in residential uses in areas without water and | Dla, D2¢ O
SeWer services.

d. The proposed action may include or require wastewater discharged to groundwater. D2d, E2I O

e. The proposed action may result in the construction of water supply wells in locations | D2c, EIf, O
where groundwater is, or is suspected to be, contaminated. Elg,Elh

f. The proposed action may require the bulk storage of petroleum or chemical products | D2p, E2I O
over ground water or an aquifer.

g. The proposed action may involve the commercial application of pesticides within 100 | E2h, D2q, O
feet of potable drinking water or irrigation sources. E2l, D2c

h. Other impacts: O O

Impact on Flooding

The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to flooding.
(See Part 1. E.2)

If “Yes", answer questions a - g. 1f “No"', move on to Section 6.

[INo

M YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposcd action may result in development in a designated floodway. E2i %} O
b. The proposed action may result in development within a 100 year floodplain. E2j %] O
c. The proposed action may result in development within a 500 year floodplain. E2k %] O
d. The proposed action may result in, or require, modification of existing drainage D2b, D2e % O
patterns.
e. The proposed action may change flood water flows that contribute to flooding. D2b, E2i, %}
E2j, E2k
Ele %}

f. If there is a dam located on the site of the proposed action, is the dam in need of repair,
or upgrade?

Page 3 of 10

-165-




g. Other impacts: 0 O
6. Impacts on Air
The proposed action may include a state regulated air emission source. NO I:]YES
(See Part 1. D.2.f, D.2.h, D.2.g)
If “Yes ", answer questions a - f. If “No ", move on to Section 7.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. If the proposed action requires federal or state air emission permits, the action may
also emit one or more greenhouse gases at or above the following levels:
i. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide (CO;) 28 o o
ii. More than 3.5 tons/year of nitrous oxide (N,O) D2g u] o
iii. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon equivalent of perfluorocarbons (PFCs) D2g 2 8
iv. More than .045 tons/year of sulfur hexafluoride (SFg) D2g g g
v. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide equivalent of D2g
hydrochloroflourocarbons (HFCs) emissions )
vi. 43 tons/year or more of methane D2h o o
-b. The proposed action may generate 10 tons/year or more of any one designated D2g o m]
hazardous air pollutant, or 25 tons/year or more of any combination of such hazardous
air pollutants.
c. The proposed action may require a state air registration, or may produce an emissions | D2f, D2g a] o
rate of total contaminants that may exceed 5 Ibs. per hour, or may include a heat
source capable of producing more than 10 million BTU's per hour.
d. The proposed action may reach 50% of any of the thresholds in *“a” through “c”, D2g o O
above.
e. The proposed action may result in the combustion or thermal treatment of more than 1 | D2s o o
ton of refuse per hour.
f. Other impacts: O o
7. Impact on Plants and Animals ’
The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna. (See Part 1. E.2, m.-q.) [INo WIYES
If “Yes ", answer questions a - j. If “No”, move on to Section 8.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may cause reduction in population or loss of individuals of any E2o0 %] (|
threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the Federal
government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
b. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2o R % O
any rare, threatencd or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the federal
government.
c. The proposed action may cause reduction in population, or loss of individuals, of any | E2p %] |
species of special concern or conservation need, as listed by New York State or the
Federal government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
d. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2p %} O
any species of special concern and conservation need, as listed by New York State or
the Federal government.

Page 4 of 10

-166-




e. The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered National Natural E3c %} O
Landmark to support the biological community it was established to protect.
{. The proposed action may result in the removal of| or ground disturbance in, any E2n %] O
portion of a designated significant natural community.
Source:
g. The proposed action may substantially interfere with nesting/breeding, foraging, or B2
e ; . : b m %] O
over-wintering habitat for the predominant specics that occupy or use the project site. )
h. The proposed action requires the conversion of more than 10 acres of forest, Elb O
grassland or any other regionally or locally important habitat.
Habitat type & information source:
i. Proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects, only) involves use of | D2q (%] O
herbicides or pesticides.
a O

j- Other impacts:

8. Impact on Agricultural Resources

The proposed action may impact agricultural resources. (See Part 1. E.3.a. and b.)

[INo

[]YES

If “Yes", answer questions a - h. If “No”, move on to Section 9.
' Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action may impact soil classified within soil group 1 through 4 of the E2c, E3b o u]
NYS Land Classification System.

b. The proposed action may sever, cross or otherwise limit access to agricultural land Ela, Elb O D
(includes cropland, hayficlds, pasture, vineyard, orchard, etc).

c. The proposed action may result in the excavation or compaction of the soil profile of | E3b n] O
active agricultural land.

d. The proposed action may irreversibly convert agricultural land to non-agricultural Elb, E3a 0 D
uses, either more than 2.5 acres if located in an Agricultural District, or more than 10
acres if not within an Agricultural District.

e. The proposed action may disrupt or prevent installation of an agricultural land Ela, Elb o O
management system.

f. The proposed action may result, directly or indirectly, in increased development C2c, C3, O 0
potential or pressure on farmland. D2c, D2d

g. The proposed project is not consistent with the adopted municipal Farmland C2c D o
Protection Plan.

o o

h. Other impacts:

Page 5 of 10

-167-




Impact on Aesthetic Resources

The land use of the proposed action are obviously different from, or are in
sharp contrast to, current land use patterns between the proposed project and
a scenic or aesthetic resource. (Part 1. E.1.a, E.1.b, E.3.1.)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - g. If “"No”, go to Section 10.

[“INo

[JyEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur
. Proposed action may be visible from any officially designated federal, state, or local E3h o m]
scenic or aesthetic resource.
. The proposed action may result in the obstruction, elimination or significant E3h, C2b m] a
screcning of one or more officially designated scenic views.
. The proposed action may be visible from publicly accessible vantage points: E3h
i. Seasonally (e.g., screened by summer foliage, but visible during other seasons) n] o
ii. Year round m] o
. The situation or activity in which viewers are engaged while viewing the proposed E3h
action is: E2q
i. Routine travel by residents, including travel to and from work ’ o o
ii. Recreational or tourism based activities Elc o o
. The proposed action may cause a diminishment of the public enjoyment and E3h ] o
appreciation of the designated aesthetic resource.
. There are similar projects visible within the following distance of the proposed Dla, Ela, = D
project: DIf,Dlg
0-1/2 mile
Y2 -3. mile
3-5 mile
5+ mile
. Other impacts: u] (u}

10. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources

The proposed action may occur in or adjacent to a historic or archacological
resource. (Part 1. E3.e, f. and g.)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If “No”, go to Section 11.

[v]NO

[]YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur
a. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous
to, any buildings, archaeological site or district which is listed on the National or E3e o o
State Register of Historical Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner
of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for
listing on the State Register of Historic Places.
b. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3f o o
to, an area designated as sensitive for archacological sites on the NY State Historic
Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory.
c. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3g n] o
to, an archaeological site not included on the NY SHPO inventory.
Source:

Page 6 of 10

-168-




c. Other impacts:

d. Other impacts: o o
If any of the above (a-d) are answered “Moderate to large impact may
€ occur”, continue with the following questions to help support conclusions in Part 3;
i.  The proposed action may result in the destruction or alteration of all or part E3e, E3g, D u]
of the site or property. E3f
ii. The proposed action may result in the alteration of the property’s setting or E3e, E3f, o &
integrity. E3g, Ela,
Elb
ili. The proposed action may result in the introduction of visual elements which E3e, E3f, o o
are out of character with the site or property, or may alter its setting. E3g, E3h,
C2,C3
11. Impact on Open Space and Recreation
The proposed action may result in a loss of recreational opportunities or a NO' DYES
reduction of an open space resource as designated in any adopted
municipal open space plan.
(See Part 1. C.2.c,E.1.c,E2.q.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If “No”, go to Section 12.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
' may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in an impairment of natural functions, or “ecosystem | D2e, Elb =i o
services”, provided by an undeveloped area, including but not limited to stormwater | E2h,
storage, nutrient cycling, wildlife habitat. E2m, E2o,
E2n, E2p
b. The proposed action may result in the loss of a current or future recreational resource. | C2a, Elc, o o
) C2¢, E2q
. The proposed action may eliminate open space or recreational resource in an area C2a, C2c o 0
with few such resources. Elc, E2q
d. The proposed action may result in loss of an area now used informally by the C2c, Elc O o
community as an open space resource.
e. Other impacts: O s}
12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas
The proposed action may be located within or adjacent to a critical NO D YES
environmental area (CEA). (See Part 1. E.3.d)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - c. If “No”, go to Section 13.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quantity of the resource or E3d m] o
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.
b. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quality of the resource or E3d o o
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.
o o

Page 7 0of 10

-169-




13. Impact on Transportation
The proposed action may result in a change to existing transportation systems.
(See Part 1. D.2,j)

If “Yes", answer questions a - f. If “No”, go to Section 14.

[v]no

[ ]yes

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. Projected traffic increase may exceed capacity of existing road network. D2j o O
b. The proposed action may result in the construction of paved parking arca for 500 or | D2j o o
more vehicles.
c. The proposed action will degrade existing transit access. D2j o D
d. The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle accommodations. D2j o o
e. The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people or goods. D2j o o
f. Other impacts: o o

14. Impact on Energy
The proposed action may cause an increase in the use of any form of energy.
(See Part 1. D.2.k) '
If “Yes"”, answer questions a - e. If

“«

0", go to Section 15.

[INo

[V]YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part] small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur

a. The proposed action will require a new, or an upgrade to an existing, substation. D2k O
b. The proposed action will require the creation or extension of an energy transmission DIif, O

or supply system to serve more than 50 single or two-family residences or to servea | D1q, D2k

commercial or industrial use.
c. The proposed action may utilize more than 2,500 MWhrs per year of electricity. D2k O
d. The proposed action may involve heating and/or cooling of more than 100,000 square | Dlg O

feet of building area when completed.
e. Other Impacts:

p O O

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light

The proposed action may result in an increase in noise, odors, or outdoor lighting.

(See Part 1. D.2.m., n., and 0.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - f. If “No”, go to Section 16.

[INo

[V]YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local D2m O
regulation.
b. The proposed action may result in blasting within 1,500 feet of any residence, D2m, Eld O
hospital, school, licensed day care center, or nursing home.
D20 O

c. The proposed action may result in routine odors for more than one hour per day.

Page 8 of 10

-170-




d. The proposed action may result in light shining onto adjoining properties. D2n O
e. The proposed action may result in lighting creating sky-glow brighter than existing D2n,Ela O
area conditions.
f. Other impacts: O
16. Impact on Human Health
The proposed action may have an impact on human health from exposure NO I:]YES
to new or existing sources of contaminants. (See Part 1.D.2.q., E.1.d. f. g. and h.) :
If “Yes", answer questions a - m. If “No", go to Section 17.
Relevant No,or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may cccur oceur
a. The proposed action is located within 1500 feet of a school, hospital, licensed day 'Eld a o
care center, group home, nursing home or retirement community.
b. The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation. Elg,Elh o o
c. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site | Elg, E1h O u|
remediation on, or adjacent to, the site of the proposed action.
d. The site of the action is subject to an institutional control limiting the use of the Elg,Elh o D
property (e.g., casement or deed restriction).
e. The proposed action may affect institutional control measures that were put in place Elg, Elh o o
to ensure that the site remains protective of the environment and human health.
f. The proposed action has adequate control measures in place to ensure that future D2t o o
generation, treatment and/or disposal of hazardous wastes will be protective of the
environment and human health.
g. The proposed action involves construction or modification of a solid waste D2q, EIf o o
management facility.
h. The proposed action may result in the unearthing of solid or hazardous waste. D2q, EIf a o
i. The proposed action may result in an increase in the rate of disposal, or processing, of | D2r, D2s ] 8]
solid waste.
j. The proposed action may result in excavation or other disturbance within 2000 feet of | E1f, Elg O a
a site used for the disposal of solid or hazardous waste. Elh
k. The proposed action may result in the migration of explosive gases from a landfill Elf, Elg o u]
site to adjacent off site structures.
I. The proposed action may result in the release of contaminated leachate from the D2s, E1f, 0 u]
project site. D2r
m. Other impacts:

Page 9 of 10

~171-




17. Consistency with Community Plans
The proposed action is not consistent with adopted land use plans.
(See Part 1. C.1,C.2. and C.3.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If “No”, go to Section 18.

[v]No

[ ]ves

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action’s land use components may be different from, or in sharp C2,C3,Dla o o
contrast to, current surrounding land use pattern(s). Ela, EIb
b. The proposed action will cause the permanent population of the city, town or village | C2 D D
in which the project is located to grow by more than 5%.
c. The proposed action is inconsistent with local land use plans or zoning regulations. C2,C2,C3 o u]
d. The proposed action is inconsistent with any County plans, or other regional land use | C2, C2 a o
plans.
e. The proposed action may cause a change in the density of development that is not C3,Dlc, o (a]
supported by existing infrastructure or is distant from existing infrastructure. D1d, DIf,
D1d, Elb
f. The proposed action is-located in an area characterized by low density development C4, D2c, D2d o o
that will require new or expanded public infrastructure. D2j
¢. The proposed action may induce secondary development impacts (e.g., residential or | C2a o o
commercial development not included in the proposed action)
o O

h. Other:

18. Consistency with Community Character
The proposed project is inconsistent with the existing community character.
(Sec Part 1. C.2,C.3,D.2, E.3)
If “Yes", answer questions a - g. 1If “No”, proceed to Part 3. -

[v]No

[]ves

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may replace or eliminate existing facilities, structures, or arcas E3e, E3f, E3g 8] u}
of historic importance to the community.
b. The proposed action may create a demand for additional community services (e.g. c4 g o
schools, police and fire)
c. The proposed action may displace affordable or low-income housing in an area where | C2, C3, DIf o O
there is a shortage of such housing. Dlg,Ela
d. The proposed action may interfere with the use or enjoyment of officially recognized | C2, E3 o u]
or designated public resources.
e. The proposed action is inconsistent with the predominant architectural scale and C2,C3 o o’
character.
f. Proposed action is inconsistent with the character of the existing natural landscape. C2,C3 o D
Ela, Elb
E2g, E2h
u] o

g. Other impacts:

PRINT FULL FORM Page 10 of 10

-172-



Agency Use Only [IfApplicable]

Projecf:

Date :

Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 3 - Evaluation of the Magnitude and Importance of Praoject Impacts
and
Determination of Significance

Part 3 provides the reasons in support of the determination of significance. The lead agency must complete Part 3 for every question
in Part 2 where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where there is a need to explain why a particular
element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse environmental impact.

Based on the analysis in Part 3, the lead agency must decide whether to require an environmental impact statement to further assess
the proposed action or whether available information is sufficient for the lead agency to conclude that the proposed action will not
have a significant adverse environmental impact. By completing the certification on the next page, the lead agency can complete its

determination of significance.

Reasons Supporting This Determination:
To complete this section:

e Identify the impact based on the Part 2 responses and describe its magnitude. Magnitude considers factors such as severity,
size or extent of an impact.

e  Assess the importance of the impact. Importance relates to the geographic scope, duration, probability of the impact
occurring, number of people affected by the impact and any additional environmental consequences if the impact were to
occur.

The assessment should take into consideration any design element or project changes.

Repeat this process for each Part 2 question where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where
there is a need to explain why a particular element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse
environmental impact.

e  Provide the reason(s) why the impact may, or will not, result in a significant adverse environmental impact

e For Conditional Negative Declarations identify the specific condition(s) imposed that will modify the propo:ed action so that
no significant adverse environmental impacts will result.

e  Attach additional sheets, as needed.

Determination of Significance - Type 1 and Unlisted Actions

SEQR Status: Type 1 D Unlisted

Identify portions of EAF completed for this Project: Part 1 Part 2 Part 3

FEAF 2019

~178-



Upon review of the information recorded on this EAF, as noted, plus this additional support information

and considering both the magnitude and importance of each identified potential impact, it is the conclusion of the
Town of Lyme as lead agency that:

A. This project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environiment, and, therefore, an environmental impact
statement need not be prepared. Accordingly, this negative declaration is issued.

[] B. Although this project could have a significant adverse impact on the environment, that impact will be avoided or
substantially mitigated because of the following conditions which will be required by the lead agency:

There will, therefore, be no significant adverse impacts from the project as conditioned, and, therefore, this conditioned negative
declaration is issued. A conditioned negative declaration may be used only for UNLISTED actions (see 6 NYCRR 617.7(d)).

[] c. This Project may result in one or more significant adverse impacts on the environment, and an environmental impact
statement must be prepared to further assess the impact(s) and possible mitigation and to explore alternatives to avoid or reduce those
impacts. Accordingly, this positive declaration is issued.

Name of Action: Sally Port View - Venue Facility

Name of Lead Agency: Town of Lyme

Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: Terry Countryman

Title of Responsible Officer: supervisor

(\./ /\‘ -
Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: \A oA/ &) ( 6 : g - Date: b//lg/lDZZ/

Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer) O Date:

For Further Information:

Contact Person: Terry Countryman

Address: 12175 NYS Route 12E, PO Box 66, Chauimont, NY 13622
Telephone Number: 315-649-2788

E-mail: supervisor@townoflyme.com
For Type 1 Actions and Conditioned Negative Declarations, a copy of this Notice is sent to:

Chief Executive Officer of the political subdivision in which the action will be principally located (c.g., Town / City / Village of)
Other involved agencies (if any)

Applicant (if any)

Environmental Notice Bulletin: http://www.dec.ny.gov/enb/enb.html

PRINT FULL FORM Page 2 of 2

-174-




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

Project Summary 8/26/2022
Project Sally Port View, LLC NAICS- 722511
7828 NYS 12e, Three Mile Bay,NY 13693 Project Acres Total Acres School Lyme
Tax Parce 60.08-1-24.1 57.68 Project Type Entertainment Venue
Current Taxes $4,783 Village '
. l J Town Lyme
Total Project Costs 8,350,000 ’ Jobs
Land 625,000 Retained
Infrastructure Added 14 Three Years
Building - 15500 Sq. FT., 6,200,000 Total 14
Furniture & Fixtures 700,000 Next Five Years
Equipment Construction Jobs 30
Equip. /NYS Production Current Assessment 266,000 Land
Exemption Final Assessment 4,000,000
Eng/Arch Fees Jobs
Finance Charges Agency Fee 125,250
Legal Fees App Fee Paid
Soft Costs 205,000
Contingency 620,000
Total 8,350,000 0 0%
Town of Lyme
Sales Tax Exemption- . Tax Rates % Distribution
Total Material 3,450,000 (6,900000 X.50%) County 7.506354 0.40352273
Lyme Town 0.800512 0.04303351
4% County Tax 138,000 Lyme- SCH 10.295194 0.55344376
4% NYS Tax 138,000 18.60206 1
Total Sales Tax Savings 276,000
Mortgage Recording Tax
_Est Mortgage Amount 5,000,000 wsB
MRT Savings 37,500
2% Escalation
Full Tax Exemption RILOT Tax Without
PILOT Payment  Project(Land) County Town School Total
Year 1 74,408 75% 18,602 4,948 7,506 801 10,295 18,602
Year 2 75,896 75% 18,974 4,948 7,656 817 10,501 18,974
Year 3 77,414 75% 19,354 4,948 7,810 833 10,711 19,354
Year 4 78,963 75% 19,741 4,948 7,966 850 10,925 19,741
Year 5 80,542 75% 20,135 4,948 8,125 866 11,144 20,135
Year 6 82,153 50% 41,076 4,948 16,575 1,768 22,733 41,076
Year 7 83,796 50% 41,898 4,948 16,907 1,803 23,188 41,898
Year 8 85,472 50% 42,736 4,948 17,245 1,839 23,652 42,736
Year 9 87,181 50% 43,591 4,948 17,590 1,876 24,125 43,591
Year 10 88,925 50% 44,462 4,948 17,942 1,913 24,607 44,462
Year 11 90,703 25% 68,027 4,948 27,451 2,927 37,649 68,027
Year 12 92,517 25% 69,388 4,948 28,000 2,986 38,402 69,388
Year 13 94,368 25% 70,776 4,948 28,560 3,046 39,170 70,776
Year 14 96,255 25% 72,191 4,948 29,131 3,107 39,954 72,191
Year 15 99,143 25% 74,357 4,948 30,005 3,200 41,152 74,357
1,287,735 665,308 74,222 268,467 28,631 368,211 665,308
52%
JCIDA Fee Calculation
Project- With PILOT 8,350,000
First 10 m@1.5%% 125,250
Second 20Mil @ .005%
Balance @ .0025%
Total Fee 125,250
-175-

SOLAR TEMPLATE/DESKTOP




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

MRB Cost Benefit Calculator

Date August 26, 2022

Project Title - Sally Port View, LLC

Project Location 7828 NYS Rt. 12E, Three Mile Bay, NY 13693

MRB | grouip

Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool pawered by MRB Group

Summary of Economic Impacts over the Life of the PILOT

$8,350,000

Direct Indirect Total

Jobs| 34 17 51)

Earnings. - $3,453,032 $788,792 54,241,824;

Local Spendi $8,350,000 $2,832,571 $11,182,571

Aggrega.te over life of the PILOT
Direct Indirect Total
Jobs| 14 2 ) 16
Earnings[ $15,959,775 $5,598,981 $21,558,756
Figure 1
Net Benefits
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$0 — R e AN - —— X SRR i ot vali
& . J < v 5 & A & o S
-g1000000  &° & & R & & & & & N &
&
I
e Benefits (Costs Net Benefits
Net Benefits chart will always display construction rhmugh' year 10, irrespective of the length of the PILOT.
Figure 2 ’ Figure 3
Total Jobs Total Earnings
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 $0 $5,000,000  $10,000,000  $15,000,000  $20,000,000  $25,000,000
# Direct Indirect’ m Direct Indirect

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

Ongoing earnings are all earnings over the life of the PILOT.

-176-




Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MR8 Group

_Es_tirnateg_gggts of Exemptions o ] .
Nominal Value Discounted Value*

Property Tax Exemption $622,428 $547,299
Sales Tax Exemption $276,000 $276,000
Local Sales Tax Exemption $128800 $128.800
State Sales Tax Exemption $147,200 $147,200
Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $37,500 $37,500
Local Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $12,500 : $12500
State Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $25,000 $25,000
Total Costs $935,928 $860,799
State and Local Benefits
Nominal Value Discounted Value*
Local Benefits $26,549,696 $23,206,581
To Private Individuals $25,800,580 $22,584,175
Temporary Payroll $4.241,824 $4,241,8624
Ongoing Payroll $21,558,756 $18,342,351
Other Payments to Private Individuals ) $0 f0
To the Public $749117 " $622,406
Increase in Property Tax Revenue $591,088 $484,077
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue $25,981 $25,981
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue $132,047 $112,347
Other Local Municipal Revenue $0 $0
State Benefits $1,341,630 $1,174,377
To the Public $1,341,630 $1,174377
Temporary Income Tax Revenue $790,882 $190,882
Ongoing Income Tax Revenue $970,144 $625,406
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue $29,693 $29,693
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue $150,911 $128,396
Total Benefits to.State & Region $27,891,326 $24,380,958
Benefit to Cost Ratio
Benefit* Cost* Ratio
Local | $23,206,581 $688,599 34:1
State | $1,174,377 $172,200 71
Grand Total $24,380,958 $860,799 28:1

*Discounted at 2%

Additional Comments from IDA

Does the IDA believe that the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion? Yes

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

-177-




Application to

Jetterson County lndustrial;
Development Agency (JCIDA)

0 Tax Exempt Bond Financing
0 Taxable Bond Financing
_XLease Leaseback Transaction

Please contact the agency for more information
regarding project eligibility and application process.

Appli C any) Name: v |
sl Compm s € 1| Bt gy ULC
l

Applicant Address:

76?{% NYS e n/E’W\«/@L Male, B
NY 13643 7 Q)

T3S 644 1675

E-mail:

Phon

kC@ %&\K\l{ thliw) L COVA
Application Date: 9 / ZS:/ 2L

Staff Signature and Date of Submission:
Completed Application Date: Staff Initial

Revised Date: , Revision #:

=~

Document Date: July 28, 2022

s i 178_ ST e T



Fee Schedule

Updated as of the date of the document

Taxable and Tax Exempt Industrial Development Revenue Bonds

Application Fee:

Fee:

Point of Contact:

A non-refundable fee of $2,500.00 is payable to the JCIDA at the time the
application is submitted. This fee will be credited towards the total fee at closing.

First $10 million - 1.5% of the principal amount ol the bond series.
$10 million - $20 million - 1% of the bond series.
Any amount over $20 million — 0.5% of the bond series.

Annual Fee - $1,500.00

David Zembiec - CEO JCIDA+1 (315) 782-5865

Lease Leaseback Transactions

Application Fee:

Fee:

Renewable Energy
Projects:

Point of Contact:

Revised Date:

A non-refundable fee of $2,500.00 is payable to the JCIDA at the time the
application is submitted. This fee will be credited towards the total fee at closing.

With a PILOT:

First $10 million - 1.5%

Second $10-$20 million - 0.5%

Any amount over $20 million - 0.25%
No PILOT - 25% of the abatement value

Annual Fee - $1,000.00

Application for Re-Assignment of benefits to new ownership - $2,000.00
Annual Administrative Fee - $1,500.00

David Zembiec - CEQ JCIDA +1 (315)782-5865

, Revision #;

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-179-



Please answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary.

)

A) Applicant Information-company receiving benefit:

Applicant Name: KV\/{:\‘; -Ekzl\hﬂﬁ _ "W\YU. M‘lﬂ/g‘»{\ ()W‘JT;N}! UL puos ?”?VH

Applicant Address: ﬁbn;n “\f 0)(@\(:){6(_ Y—d ! WO*{AUW\ N\'( \,\}60 l
Phone: 8‘5 L}O% 6\§M Fax:

Website: g"\“\]‘ {2’0&\)‘\(};\)3 Loy E-mail: k(,ﬁ,sc- l‘{ !91){’(\/'\6\}), (o
Federal ID#: NAICS: T 251

Will a Real Estate Holding Company be utilized to own the Project property/facility? E Yes or[] No

What is the namg of the Real Estate Holding Companyf Thf 2 Ay Bh\( Ut’/"‘ wres (-'L‘C/
86-1 115156 "

Federal ID#: LT15¢5

State and Year or Incorporation/Organization: M‘{ —LDZ‘ s
List of stockholders, members, or partners of Real Estate Holding Company: Kv\ft\s MG\V\J

Sole s/

Renewable Energy Projects: Attach oWnership chart and indicate companies that will eventually own

and operate project

B) Individual Completing Application:

Name: K\N‘*\S E?)M«E]‘}
Title: Duwnes
address:_AUFo Bdee 1 Weke Aon WY 13800

Phorie: ?)I’S q % 9 QS-DQ{’ . Fax:
E-Mail: it@ ,S‘\ \ L{ﬁ:-ﬁ;{‘ VAV COVN

C) Company Contact (if different from Section B above):

Name:
Title:
Address:

Fax:

Phone:
E-Mail:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Dacumerit Date: 7/28/2022

-180-



D) Company Counscl:

Name of Attorney; 'Pff\{f Wﬂ\ \/\’0"\ '

Firm Name: K\A}% M Df{_{\Q;\/\g : . i
Address: 10 W%‘l\l}‘\()fvi\ 5’\' SUrk/ 5@{'\ WMUM,, '\}l{ ‘360\

Phone: ?)lg L753 g(} B‘é Fax:

E-mail: \OW&\M\Q/‘{&)@&‘“’?(V\&.‘{ { . ComN

E) Identify the assistance beino requested of the Agency (select all that apply):

1. Exemption from Sales Tax ’ &Yes or[] No.
2. Exemption from Mortgage Tax A Yes or[] No
3. Exemption from Real Property Tax B Yes or [ No
4. Tax Exempt Financing * [ Yes or & No

* (typically for not-for-profits and qualified small manufacturers)

F) Applicant Business Information (check appropriate category):

Corporation | Partnership l
Public Corporation J Joint Venture ]
Sole Proprietorship | Limited Liability Company E
Other (please specify)

Year Established: 202 ]

State in which Organization is established: M{)u/ S)D/

G) List all applicant stockholders, members or partners with % of ownership greater than 5%
(including all parent entities) (INCLUDE CHART]

NOTE: All applicants must include a current ownership chart reflecting equity ownership. Applications
will not be accepted or deemed complete without this information.

The Agency's acceptance of this application will be specific to the existing equity ownership of the
applicant and the Agency's ultimate approval is likewise specific to the applicant equity ownership (the
taxpayer beneficiaries of the Agency's financial assistance). The Agency's z;ppx'ova! of any proposed
project shall be specific to the equity ownership of the Company at the time of application to the Agency.
The Agency's approval of any financial assistance, including real property tax exemptions, is non-

transferrable and may not be assigned or assumed without the Agency's prior written consent. Any

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-181-



transfer in excess of fifty percent (50%) of the equity voting interests of the Company (including all
parent companies of the Company through and including the ultimate taxpayer(s) owning or controlling
the Company), other than 10 a Related Person of the Company, shall be deemed an assignment and
require the prior written consent of the Agency. Any proposed assignment shall require the prior written
consent of the Agency upon written application no less than 45 days prior to a regularly scheduled

meeting of the Agency.

Name % of ownership

Kurbis Benddl | 6L

H) Applicant Business Description:

Describe in detail company background, products, customers, goods and services. Descriplion is critical
in determining eligibility: Q..W IS a éO‘ V7. C'u)‘eh’\' (th M’W\ Me lN'l
\od m(z, boex Yed B {ondS Lapeg] qnwok 1% |host Du C pr\'t/'/ ,
a»d NGD QA}ZM)Y} N - WWcj\i’/ W j Seele (’aﬂ’mﬂ' i

Estimated % of sales within Jefferson County: \ oo

Estimated % of sales outside Jefferson County, but within New York State: ,@
Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S.: e

Estimated % of sales outside the U.S.

* .

(*Percentage to equal 100%)

I) What percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services are purchased from
‘firms in Jefferson County. Include list of vendors, raw material suppliers and percentages for each.

Provnde 5 (j) K;If, documentation including estimated percentage of local purchases.

fe, ﬂ{ fﬁ ﬂabAojt Tﬁréﬂnars 57k/ b;kﬂ%; 'Zil—fikcauk*;zr\
cldvnz., DAde . HUAC - Bledk @ Dlurmbrd S ﬂ)vm
?\W.l, e~ p-cw % A?‘(‘(/ LMM&"‘ DC ?’V‘\M 3‘15

| Selasson (oA cotredie’s ooy direat Gron SbES
&»&7{ @(}@\Nf ds

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-182-



A) Project Loeation:

List your current operation(s) locations in Jefferson County:

Tireg. Ml By

List your current operation(s) locations in New York State:

N CMAAL_ ¢
Provide the Property Address of the proposed Project:

7DD NYS €y8 12E
7;\{% WULL RW}{ ,)NY [%"73

Will the completion of the Project result in the removal, or reduction of an industrial or manufacturing

plant of the Applicant from: one area of New York State to Jefferson County; or within Jefferson County?

[] Yes or N%
If Yes, please provide details

Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the

Applicant located within New York State?

[ Yes or No X

If Yes, please provide details

Will the Proposed Project cause Applicant’s current operations within Jefferson County to be closed or

be subjected to reduced activity?

[] Yes or Noﬁ

If Yes, please provide details

If Yes to any of the above three (3) questions, Applicant must complete Section IV of this Application.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

~183-



Will the completion of the Project result in-the abandonment, removal, or reduction of an industrial or

manufacturing plant of a closely aligned competitor from one area of New York State or Jefferson

County?
[1Yes or No ﬁ

If Yes, pleasc provide details

SBL Number for Property upon which proposed Project will be located: b /. 0 % “1- w h ‘

What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site?

If amount of current taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each:

) .
Land: $ HI Z@J Buildings(s): $ %ﬁ

** If available please include a copy of current tax bill.

Are Real Property Taxes current? m Yes or[_] No. Ifno, please explain

Town/City/Village: M{QMJT\ 6€ L\‘H‘nt School District: L\'JMU

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title to the Project site’?E Yes or[] No

If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site:

Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site? [[] Yes or X No

B) Please provide narrative of project and the purpose of the project (new build, renovations,
and/or equipment purchases). Identify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and

all tenants and apy/all end users: (This mformatlon is critical in determyining project eligibility):
e wil e = 10k Zft T gt el ok stzera! &dcdnen oor

Z &’nua_‘xl-e/ S*wjﬂj (m@mw ot | (ocl\fom w0 Me(jhm moL
NP ~qurprd. \01«'](\0 ‘”\Jfofw‘\" bulding will host & la,u»lvww\ - el
corvier 5%l G CJ\Q%S e eapoble o dchwz 9 Provdes
’F/\MM\M% d ?Abﬁ" awf slmatapueﬁ/m_b

Describe the reasons why the Agency’s Financial Assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project
will have on the Applicant’s business or operations Focus on competitiveness issues, project

shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determmf#‘c’)z/ b'lsed in part on your auswer {attach
additional pages if necessary): _ <3t 10«(;( CDM«NXQ\:_T W~ uﬂ’

J

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-184-



8

I "‘Y{f\:fwm #ff L‘fw,bv’t 13 (O:J\M"m( w lwk(f eré wjfsdz Gﬁ%&m (z’w\“f

Please confirm by chcckmg the box, bclmv, ll' lhcrc is a slrong possibility that the Project would not
be undertaken but for the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency?

Yes or [:] No

I es, [%;sc provide details: W\S’Q‘M»c;\ [ 1LM(L ek ;}'“?/ 57\1(139\% de
\C»'vsﬁw\ M \wvrj (¢ d’_\'o Cu(wv\*{‘ —('le,} p,g/_gm\ Sc‘(ovr’\f
Mc,uso«rb—\‘b warka end bk SpU

{

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the Agency, then
provide a statement in the space provided below indicating why the Project should be undertaken

by the Agency:

AVAR %r ﬂr\( ‘\% buld_a merAFo\AV Sﬂe)wv\ ﬁpj M of - rJan

wStameses 15 ke, pmolB ol = @luon cogomac ﬂwJo LiLontr
-WN"X C,\I\O\MMG%%&'IM fi‘@?)‘;sw( 1,»J~L Lo -"ﬁqﬂf‘

If the Applicant is unable to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on
the Applicant?

o wW\&b&-owa&% Lot wwlmﬁx e, oo
QM("’VM w\\k b‘azlu(\’ <}>() §D(‘L€Kf \Q(&LICU\I ?"\,’kt\e MW\ \S

C) Will Project include leasing any equipment [ ] Yes or[X" No

1f Yes, please describe:

D) Site Characteristics:

f the proposed Project,site: OD@N ‘QWW\\W\A.

Describe the. present use X

M&{{\M(‘m% gond leod8 & o we l—mﬁbm\\e <to,

|

Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed locatlon"/m Yes or[] No

If Yes, please provide local zoning reference that applies: iNOe';Qf{{‘VT.‘( DB‘]‘{R,JY' 'T;Jn a‘#l)s(n\(/

For Renewable Energy Projects — provide acres [ leased or [[] owned:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

~-185-



R clborel Gom \LE CEO£t fom sl«gwre .
Describe the present zoning/land use: S04t Lo Shoee. i§ ')\)Q*V‘(m* Gu("r 76\-7

Describe required zoning/land use, if different:

If a change in zouing/land usc is requi;f);}, leasc provide details/status of any request for change of
zoning/land use requirements: ‘R
L

Is the proposed project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is

complicating the development/use of the property? If yes, please explain: i)

Have site plans been submitted to the appropriate planning board or department?

mYes or[] No

** If yes, pleasc provide the Agency with a copy of the related State Environmental Quality
Review Act (“SEQR™) Environmental Assessment Form that may have been required to be submitted

along with the site plan application to the appropriate planning department. Please provide the Agency

with the status with respect to any required planning department approval:

Has the Project received site plan approval from the planning department? [Zj Yes or[] No.

If Yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the planning department approval along with

the related SEQR determination.

E) Has a Phase 1 Environmental Assessment been prepared, or will one be prepared with respect to the

proposed project sitc‘?& Yes or[ ] No Ifyes, please provide a copy.

F) Have any other studies or assessments been undertaken with respect to the proposed project site that

indicate the known or suspected presence of contamination that would complicate the site’s development?

[ Yes orIB7 No. Ifyes, please provide copies of the study

Provide any additional information or details: aéﬁ‘?cd«» M{‘N"" ” p e ] MvIi¥on “'L‘ "

welled ddncdon” T sty st ingiechmet o pleked

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-186-



H)’ Select Project Type for all end users at project site (you may check more than one):

** Please check any and all end users as identified below,

Industrial C] Back Office O
Acquisition of Existing Facility [] Retail []
Housing ] Mixed Usc ]
Equipment Purchase ] Facility for Aging l
Multi-Tenant ] Civic Facility (not for profit) [
Commercial O Othcr_'rouds‘{‘ ShAclioN lg

E‘—du’r W

** Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes
with respect to either cconomic activity indicated below, complete the Retail Questionnaire contained in
Section 111 of the Application. .

Retail Sales: [] Yes or[X¥ No Services: [ Yes orK] No

For purposes of this question, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under
Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the retail sale
of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (ii) sales of a
service to customers who personally visit the Project.

I) Project Information:

Estimated costis in connection with Project:

Renewable Energy Projects use Cost Section on page 11.

0
N
,UW
~

1. Land and/or Building Acquisition:
5 5 acres ﬁ square feet

New Building Construction: 3% square fect

2. $ :

3. New Building Addition(s): square feet s

4. Infrastructure Work $ -

5. Reconstruction/Renovation: square feet -3 -

6. Manufacturing Equipment: s —

7. Non-Manufacturing Equipment (furniture, fixtures, etc.): $_ 700 E

8. Soft Costs: (professional services, etc.): $ LDS |

9. Other, Specify: _| 0( . cont ﬁg-@”f?/ s 6LO%
‘ TOTAL Capital Costs: §$ -gm

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-187-



Renewable Encrgy Project: Project Costs

1. Project size MWac MWdc
2. Solar equipment costs ' $
(panels, racking, all solar equipment to inverters)
3. Site cquipment and FF&E costs §
(on-production equipiment from inverter to interconnection,
including site fencing, security and other equipment)
4. Site work and land prepacation costs b
(earthwork, roadways, landscaping, and site plan
improvements, highway cuts, wetland mitigation and
other onsite infrastructure costs)
5. All interconnection costs whether direct or indirect N3
expense through utility
6. All pre-development costs, including planning, engineering, $
site plan and permitting
7. Battery storage costs $
8. Battery storage capacity _MWac MWdc
9. All other soft costs including legal, planning and permitting $
10. Community benefit payments or impact fees $
[1. Community adder $
12. Community or market transition credit $
13. Total annual lease amount for project 3
14. Other (please identify): $
Total: $

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this Application? [ ] Yes or[] No

If Yes, describe particulars:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-188-



Project refinancing; estimated amount

(for refinancing of existing debt only) $

Sources of Funds for Project Costs:

>
é}d

Bank Financing:

Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits)

Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable) , $
Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable) : $
Public Sources (Include sum total of all statc and federal |

grants and tax credits) 5 77§ k‘

Identify each state and federal grant/credit:

DANCTovA s Fonds 5_LS¥
Neb /Sedo s 228k

NCEDE s_Bo0k
‘ \ & A Zoek
l\)f)Ywm b
Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs: $ g‘g A

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this Application? 53 Yes or[ ] No

If Yes, describe particulars: 'Jv%'\h\ﬁ 53}7, V\WL L\LS k‘éul\ C(N\qu@q 0\/‘&50%

ZOINE erducsd o Seope I ‘th -

, Revision #:

Revised Date:

Document Date; 7/28/2022

-189-



recording tax:

Mortgage Amount (mcludc sum total of construction/permanent/bridge financing): $ )z S:f/ﬁ(]a )
B 17 5cp

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit (product of mortgage
$

Amount as indicated abave multiplied hy“]G%
OLLading 0™ mergyal Co dea

Construction Cost Breakdown:

Total Cost of Construction $ (D:w-1 (sum of 2,3,4,5, and/or 7 in Question I, above)

Cost for materials: $_2 A K 7 G5t o
% sourced in Jefferson County: Ol }

% sourced in New York State % (including chferson County)

List major material suppliers if known lM;u\@-— Lowsees MLILp—g Qt 116\»«6 S‘*"F‘F\‘f
LA Ruewrvy .

Cost for labor: $ 274 m

Expected Full-Time Equivalent Jobs during construction . 2
E‘cpected Total Labor Hours during constructlon

List major subcontractors, lfknown D Bu };jg{. S;; Omd ,D;_.i-\rt y jbt’;ac,cw’hm

Sales and Use Tax: Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to State and local Sales
and Use tax - said amount to benefit from the Agency’s Sales and Use Tax exemption benefit:

s W A3B0000v

Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit (product of

s 9K )fL?é,ﬂﬂﬂ

% Note that the estimate provided above will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation
and Finance. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the
Applicant to undertake the total amount of investment as proposed within this Application, and that the
estimate, above, represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency may
authorize with respect 1o this Application. The Agency may utilize the estimate, above, as well as the
proposed total Project Costs as contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance

that will be offered.

____ % multiplied by the figure, above):

Real Property Tax Benefit:

Identify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property tax exemption benefit OTHER
THAN the Agency’s PILOT benefit: N, A

Revised Date: ~_, Revision #: .

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-190-



14

JCIDA PILOT Benefit: Agency staff will indicate the amount of PILOT Benefit based on estimated
Project Costs as contained herein and anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation, including the annual
PILOT Benefit abatement amount for each year of the PILOT benefit year and the sum total of PILOT
Benefit abatement amount for the term of the PILOT as depicted in Section (1) of the Application.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources: Agency staff will calculate the
percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Scctor sources based upon Sources of Funds for Project
Costs as depicted above in Section I1(1) of the Application.

J) For the proposed facility, please indicate the square footage for each of the uses outlined below:

*[f company is paying for FFE for tenants, pleasc include in cost breakdown

Square Footage Cost % of Total Cost of Project
Manufacturing/Processing
| Warehouse
Research & Development
Commercial Moan Hell 14 2., 60D a3 7l I yn 5! -
Retail (see section K)
Vitice 2,500 & 350k 9 %
Specify Other ‘\_g{%s@ eacin \o o
Ce\ges oo 50 4gkel | * 5P |

K) What is your project timetable (Provide dates):

1. Start date: acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities: OYBO\ ‘3

2. Estimated completion date of project: l SJV\Q, oA

v o’ -y .o
3. Project occupancy — estimaled starting date of operations: | Sure. 28 yiZ)
4. Have construction contracts been signed?/K] Yes or[ ] No
5. Has Financing been finalized? []Yes orﬁ/No

** If constructions contracts have been signed, please provide copies of executed construction contracts
and a complete project budget. The complete project budget should include all related construction costs

totaling the amount of the new building construction, and/or new building addition(s), and/or renovation.

Revised Date: __, Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-191 -



L) Is the proposed Project necessary to expand Applicant employment: [ Yes or[] No

Is the proposed Project necessary to retain existing employment: [J Yes or[] No
M) Employment Plan (Specific to the proposed project location):
Current # of jobs at [IIF FINANCIAL IF FINANCIAL
proposcd project ASSISTANCE IS ASSISTANCE IS

GRANTED — project
the number of FTE

location or to be
relocated at project

GRANTED - project
the number of FTE

location jobs to be RETAINED fjobs to be CREATED
upon THREE Years
after Project
completion
**Eull time 1 L‘.
(FTE) 1y ‘
/ 7

** By statute, Agency staff must project the number of FTE jobs that would be retained and created if the

request for Financial Assistance is granted. Agency staff will project such jobs over the Three-Year time

period following Project completion. convert part-ltime jobs into FTE jobs by dividing the number of

part-time jobs by two (2). A FTE job is one that works the equivalent of a 40-hour week for 48 weeks. A

part-time job is one that works the equivalent of a 20-hour week for 24 weeks.

Salary and Frinee Benefits far Jobs to be Retained and Created:

ategory of Jobs to be
Retained and Created

FTE Average Salary or Range of Salary

Average Fringe Benefits or,
Range of Fringe Benefits

Management = X 50 / v , 56@] ot W
Professional 3 &3 / I ’bé@]\wsﬁk\ ke e
Administrative é & 'Z.of W %}w@%«,\ W
Production

Transportation/Logistics

Warehousing

Other

TOTAL

Revised Date:

, Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

~192-




16

Employment at other locations in County/City/Town/Village: (provide address and number of employees

at each location):

Location Address

Full time

Part Time
Total

N) Will any of the facilitics described above be closed or subject to reduced activity? [] Yes oﬂﬁ No

** If any of the facilities described above are located within the State of New York, and you answered

Yes to the question, above, you must complete Section IV of this Application.

** Please note that the Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections, among other items, 10
determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to retain the

number of jobs and create the number of jobs with respect lo the Project as set forth in this Application.

0) Is the proposed Project reasonably necessary to prevent the Applicant from moving out of New York
State? ,&Yes or[ ] No.  Out of Jefferson County? ,[2 Yes or[_] No.

If yes, please explain and identify the other locations being investigated, t{:ﬁ of assistance offered and

provide supporting documentation if ayailable: —TV'Q- m‘(éd'- Wy SN jbﬁa(,:‘gt_ n,v\—cL
waechy x‘VbJS\‘:L( k(m h zu«l“%—{ ﬂybd{bftc\(v\’% (S Cév;‘}' @rol
Aalhare | ! N

P) What competitive factors led you to inquire about sites outside of Jefferson County or New York

State?

Salec dow%”ﬂx a‘LJM cz.(‘rc/,.é&‘ [m(\jr"?éw«jwi ;3‘/3 oyesﬁg
[0 s e gz 0S ashreto spuvalzst ctsledls /‘F;ylgxrl)'\k{r‘

Q) Have you contacted or been contacted by other Local, State and/or Federal Economic Development

Agencies? EXYes or[] No.
Have you applied, or intend to apply for additional Grant Funding, or tax inccntives?m Yes or [ ] No.

If yes, please identify which agencies and what other Local, State and/or Federal assistance and the
assistance sought and dollar amount that is anticipated to be received: Q‘E—’DC U—Ki - 3{ \ Sn

, Revision #:

Revised Date:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-193-



To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency
requires additional information if the proposed Project is one where customers personally visit the
Project site to undertake cither a retail sale transaction or to purchase services.

Please answer the following:

A. Will any portion of the Project (including that portion of the cost to be financed from equity or
other sources) consist of facilities or property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of
goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

[ Yes or X] No. If the answer is yes, please continue. If no, proceed to section V

For purposes of Question A, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under
Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the
retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or
(ii) sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

B. What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property
primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project?
%. If the answer is less than 33% do not complete the remainder

of the retail determination and proceed to section V.

If the answer to A is Yes AND the answer to Question B is greater than 33.33%, indicate which
of the following questions below apply to the project:

1. Will the Project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation [ ] Yes or [ ] No.

2. s the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors from outside
the economic development region (list specific County or ED region) in which the project will be

located?
[] Yesor[] No

If yes, please provide a third-party market analysis or other documentation supporting your
response.

3. Is the predominant purpose of the Project to make available goods or services which would
not, but for the Project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the municipality within which
the proposed Project would be located because of a lack of reasonably accessible retail trade

facilities offering such goods or services?

[]Yesor[] No

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-194-



18

If yes, please provide a third-party market analysis or other documentation supporting your
responsc.

4. Will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall number of
permanent, private scctor jobs in the State of New York? -

[1vYes or[] No.

I yes, explain

5. Is the Project located in a Highly Distressed Arca? [JYesor [l No

The Agency is required by State law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting
from Agency Financial Assistance results in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the
Applicant from one area of New York State to another area of the State; or in the abandonment of one or
more plants or facilities of the Applicant located within the New York State , Agency Financial
Assistance is required to prevent the Applicant from relocating out of the New York State, or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the Applicant’s competitive position in its respective industry.

Explain how the Agency’s Financial Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of
New York State, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupant’s competitive position in its

respective industry:

(Adaptive Reuse is the process of adapting old structures or sites for new purposes)

Are you applying for a tax incentive under the Adaptive Reuse Program? [ Yes or&Nc

. If No, please proceed to next Section

A) What is the age of the structure (in years)

B) Has the structure been vacant or underutilized for a minimum of 3 years? (Underutilized is defined as a
minimum of 50% of the rentable square footage of the structure being utilized for a use for which the structure

was not designed or intended) [] Yes or [] No. How many years?

Revised Date: _, Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-195-



19

C) Is the structure currently gencrating insignificunt income? (Insignificant income is defined as income that is
50% or less than the market rate income average for that property class) (] Yes or [] No
If yes, please provide dollar amount of income being generated, if any

D) Does the site have historical significance? [] Yes or[_] No

E) Are you applying for cither State/Federal Historical Tax Credit Programs? [ Yes or [J No. [fyes, provide
estimated value of tax credits

F) Summarize the financial obstacles to development that this project faces without Agency or other public
assistance. Please provide the Agency with documentation to support the financial obstacles to development
(you will be asked to provide cash flow projections, documenting costs, expenses and revenues with and
without 1DA and other tax credits included indicating below average return on investment rates compared to
regional industry averages): ‘

G) Briefly summarize the demonstrated support that you intend to receive from local goverriment entities. Please
provide the Agency documentation of this support in the form of signed letters from these entities:

H) Please indicate other factors that you would like the Agency to consider such as: structure or site presents
significant public safety hazard and or environmental remediation costs, site or structure is located in distressed
census tract, structure presents significant costs associated with building code compliance, site has historical

significance, site or structure is presently delinquent in properly tax payments:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-196-



20

** Section V of this Application will be: (i) completed by IDA Staff based upon information
contained within the Application, and (i) provided to the Applicant for ultimate inclusion as part
of this completed Application.

PILOT Estimate Table Worksheet

Dollar Value | Estimated County Tax Local Tax Rate School Tax
of New New Assessed | Rate/1000 (Town/City/Village)/1000 | Rate/1000
Construction | Value of
and Property
Renovation Subject to
Costs IDA*
*Apply equalization rate to value
PILOT % County Local School Total Full Tax | Net
Year Payment | PILOT PILOT PILOT PILOT Payment | Exemption
Amount | Amount | Amount | w/o
' PILOT

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 .

9

10
TOTAL

*Estimates provided are based on current property tax rates and assessment values

Revised Date:

, Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-197-




21

Pcrcénmgc of Project Costs financed from Public Sector Table Worksheet:

Total Project | Estimated | Estimated Estimated Value of | Total of Other Public
Cost Value of | Value of Sales | Mortgage Tax Incentives (Tax Credits,
PILOT Tax Incentive | [ncentive Grants, ESD Incentives,
' ctc.)

Calculate %

ol)

(Est. PILOT + Est. Sales Tax+ Est. Mortgage Tax+ Other)/Total Project Costs:
gag ]

JCIDA will also complete a Cost-Benefit analysis using information contained within this
Application, and available to the Public.

(name of CEQ or other authorized representative of Applicant)
confirms and says that he/she is  the (title)  of

(name of corporation or other entity) named in the attached
Application (the “Applicant”), that he/she has read the foregoing Application and knows the contents
thereof, and hereby represents, understands, and otherwise agrees with the Agency and as follows:

A. Job Listings: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal Law,
the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance
from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, new
employment opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York

-State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the “DOL”) and with the
administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the “JTPA Entities”) of the service delivexy
area created by the federal job trammg partnership act (Public Law 97-300) (“JTPA”) in

which the Project is located.

B. First Consideration for Employment: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York
General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining
agreements, where practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate
in JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment
opportunities created as a result of the Project.

C. Annual Sales Tax Filings: In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York General
Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any sales
" tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance from the Agency, in accordance with

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-198-



Section 874(8) of the General Municipal Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be
filed, with the New York Statc Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form
prescribed by the Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax
exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consullants or subcontractors retained by the

Applicant. Copies of all filings shall be provided to the Agency.

D. Employment Reports: The Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with
the Agency, al least annually or as otherwise required by the Agency, reports regarding the
number of people employed at the project site, salary levels, contractor utilization and such
other information (collectively, “Employment Reports”) that may be requircd from time to
time on such appropriate forms as designated by the Agency. Failure to provide Employment
Reports within 30 days of an Agency request shall be an Event of Default under the PILOT
Agrecment between the Agency and Applicant and, if applicable, an Event of Default under
the Agent Agreement between the Agency and Applicant. In addition, a Notice of Failure to
provide the Agency with an Employment Report may be reported to Agency board members,
‘said report being an agenda item subject to the Open Meetings Law.

E. The Applicant acknowlcdges that certain environmental representations will be required at
closing. The Applicant shall provide with this Representation, Certification and
Indemnification Form copies of any known environmental reports, including any existing
Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment Report(s) and/or Phase Il Environmental
Investigations. The Agency may require the Company and/or owner of the premises to
prepare and submit an environmental assessment and audit report, including but not
necessarily limited to, a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report and a Phase II
Environmental Investigation, with respect to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the
owner and/or the Applicant. All environmental assessment and audit reports shall be
completed in accordance with ASTM Standard Practice E1527-05, and shall be conformed
over to the Agency so that the Agency is authorized to use and rely on the reports. The
Agency, however, does not adopt, ratify, confirm or assume any representation made within
reports required herein. :

F. The Applicant and/or the owner, and their successors and assigns, hereby release, defend and
indemnify the Agency from any and all suits, causes of action, litigations, damages, losses,
liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or
expenses of any kind or nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys’,
consultants’ and experts’ fees) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or
asserted or awarded against the Agency, resulting from or arising out of any inquiries and/or
environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on behalf of the Applicant
and/or the owner pursuant hereto, including the scope, level of detail, contents or accuracy of
any environmental assessment, audit, inspection or investigation report completed hereunder
and/or the selection of the environmental consultant, engineer or other qualified person to
perform such assessments, investigations, and audits.

G. Hold Harmless Provision: The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the Applicant shall be
and is responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in connection with any actions required
to be taken by the Agency in furtherance of the Application including the Agency’s costs of
general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application,
the proposed Project it describes, the attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds or other

Revised Date: , Revision i

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-199-



transaction or agreement arc ultimately ever carried to successful conclusion and agrecs that
the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the Agency
harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or expensc incurrcd by: (i) the
Agency's examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application,
regardless of whether or not the Application or the proposed Project described herein or the
tax excmptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted upon by the
Agency; (ii) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or installation of the proposed Project
described herein; and (iii) any further action taken by the Agency with respect to the
proposed Project including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of
action and attorney's fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions
which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing. Applicant hereby understands and agrees,
in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York General Municipal Law and the policies
of the Agency that any New York Statc and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the
Applicant and approved by the Agency, any mortgage recording tax exemption claimed by
the Applicant and approved by the Agency, and/or any real property tax abatement claimed
by the Applicant and approved by the Agency, in connection with the Project, may be subject
to recapture and/or termination by the Agency under such terms and conditions as will be
established by the Agency and set forth in transaction documents to be entered into by and
between the Agency and the Applicant. The Applicant further represents and warrants that
the information contained in this Application, including without limitation information
regarding the amount of the New York State and local sales and usc tax exemption benefit,
the amount of the mortgage recording tax exemption benefit, and the amount of the real
property tax abatement, if and as applicable, to the best of the Applicant’s knowledge, is true,
accurate and complete. '

H. This obligation includes an obligation to submit an Agency Fee Payment to the Agency in
accordance with the Agency Fee policy effective as of the date of this Application

L. By executing and submitting this Application, the Applicant covenants and agrees to pay the
following fees to the Agency and the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s
bond/transaction counsel, the same to be paid at the times indicated:

(i) a non-refundable $’§,‘\§_o_oapplicalion and publication fee (the “Application Fee”);
(it) ald expense deposit for the Agency’s Counsel Fee Deposit.

(ili)  Unless otherwise agreed to by the Agency, an amount equal to percent
( %) of the total project costs.

(iv)  All fees, costs and expenses incurred by the Agency for (1) legal services, including but
not limited to those provided by the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction
counsel, thus note that the Applicant is entitled to receive a written estimate of fees and costs of the
Agency’s general counsel and the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel; and (2) other consultants
retained by the Agency in connection with the proposed project, with all such charges to be paid by

the Applicant at the closing.

g If the Applicant fails to conclude or consummate the necessary negotiations, or fails, within a
reasonable or specified period of time, to take reasonable proper or requested action, or
withdraws, abandons, cancels, or neglects the Application, or if the Applicant is unable to

Revised Date: ", Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-200-



24

find buyers willing to purchase the bond issue requested, or if the Applicant is unable to
facilitate the sale/leascback or lease/leaseback transaction, then, upon the presentation of an
invoice, Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents, or assigns all actual costs incurred by
the Agency in furtherance of the Application, up to that datc and time, including but not
necessarily limited to, fees of the Agency’s general counscl and/or the Agency’s
bond/transaction counsel.

K. The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that all payment liabilities to the Agency and the
Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond and/or transaction counsel as expressed
in Sections H and 1 are obligations that are not dependent on final documentation of the
transaction contemplated by this Application.

L. The cost incurred by the Agency and paid by the Applicant, the Agency’s general counsel
and/or bond/transaction counsel fees and the processing fees, may be considered as a cost of
the Project and included in the financing of costs of the proposed Project, except as limited by
the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code with respect to tax-exempt bond

financing.

M. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency is subject to New York State’s Freedom of
Information Law (FOIL). Applicant understands that all Project information and records
related to this application are potentially subject to disclosure under FOIL subject to

limited statutory exclusions.

N. The Applicant acknowledges that it has been provided with a copy of the Agency’s Policy for
Termination of Agency Benefits and Recapture of Agency Benefits Previously Granted (the
“Termination and Recapture Policy”). The Applicant covenants and agrees that it fully
understands that the Termination and Recapture Policy is applicable to the Project that is the
subject of this Application, and that the Agency will implement the Termination and
Recapture Policy if and when it is so required to do so. The Applicant further covenants and
agrees that its Project is potentially subject to termination of Agency financial assistance
and/or recapture of Agency financial assistance so provided and/or previously granted.

0. The Applicant understands and agrees that the provisions of Section 862(1) of the New York
General Municipal Law, as provided below, will not be violated if Financial Assistance is

provided for the proposed Project:

§ 862. Restrictions on funds of the agency. (1) No funds of the agency shall be used in
respect of any project if the completion thereof would result in the removal of an industrial or
manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of the
state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located
within the state, provided, however, that neither restriction shall apply if the agency shall
determine on the basis of the application before it that the project is reasonably necessary to
discourage the project occupant from removing such other plant or facility to a location
outside the state or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the project

occupant in its respective industry.

P, The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the owner, occupant, or operator receiving
Financial Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial compliance with applicable
local, state and federal tax, worker protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-201-



25

Q. The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the submission of any knowingly false or
knowingly misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any Financial
Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount equal to all or part of any tax exemption
claimed by reason of the Agency’s involvement the Project.

R. The Applicant confirms and hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this Application, the
Applicant is in substantial compliance with all provisions of Article 18-A of the New York
General Municipal Law, including, but not limited to, the provision of Section 859-a and
Section 862(1) of the New York General Municipal Law.

S. The Applicant and the individual executing this Application on behalf of Applicant
acknowledge that the Agency and its counsel will rely on the representations and covenants
made in this Application when acting hereon and hereby represents that the statements made
herein do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements contained herein not misleading.

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON  )ss.:

Kufh ) &/\/‘;‘MZH’Q being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

1. That I am the QW 2s" (Corporate Office) of g i’ / / Yy ,%F" U\)I-éuu
(Applicant) and that I am duly authorized on behalf of the Applicant to bifd the Applicant.

2. That I have read the attached Application, I know the contents thereof, and that to the best of
my knowledge and belief, this Application and the contents of this Application are true,

accurate and complete.

(Signature of Officer)

Subscribed and affirmed to me under penalties of perjury

this 30" day of_é u , 2002

/7T NG PRieeR
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF NEW YORK
Reglstration No. 01NU6152633

Qualified in Jetferson County
Commission Expires September 18, 20 a2

Revised Date: ~_, Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-202-



SAVED: 4/5/22 4:10 PM

ol
Z
&
E
3
B
HEHHE
3"""‘;
= HEMENE
NEEEN
HEEERE
3
HEREE
; e
! R
N, o
! wuuweeﬁ:sm:mb 8181588
e ‘ NO. 50.08-1-28 ggégg
RRIRHR
HYDRANT RLOK TEST A RENNRH
S SRERER
EL 267.0 wlololal<|g
TAVSE RCAD |
] I
4 JE
SNSRI
i z
|{ ] =4 <
\ 1 \I z -
lh a
hn o
1 Yoy
Ju_ g,_
n

————

SWAME ROAL
SerEe)|

——— S

' &
=8 2
O wz
Sw3>
=>0
| W = 8 —o
12360 LLC % (A
TAX ID NO. 60.08-1-24.2 \ [« 8 o [e]
\ BULK REGULATIONS — WATERFRONT DISTRICT — WF Q z0
‘ +57.68 ACRES »zzH
-
REQUIRED PROVIDED FE3 = E
MINIMUM LOT AREA 1 AC. +57.68 AC. [ -
FRONT YARD 30" 2.280" ~
| REAR YARD 30" 75
78" VENUE 338" VENUE
SO D 30 CABIN 47" CABIN
MINIMUM LOT VADTH 200° ?54' PROVECT §
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT N/A iy S 21-146
; PARKING SPACES L LT 174 SPACES
i DATE:
AUGUST 2021
PLAN | ok
s ey A = T ek A Tl o i
ARE REPROGUCID BY ANY MENG. USE THE CRAPHC SCALE BAR B TRE LS D DESKIR, 10 ATTA RS PCAEM,

-203-




SAVED: 3/21/22 B:23 AM

A 2 N
\
. , | \
4
\ \ )
\ 2
I B3y
\ glichld
GRAVEL -] 22
. ACCESS ROAD 35|
& \ é S3le
AG PROPOSED SUGAR \ 3z|5
DISTRICT MAPLE OR EQUAL \ 2|313|u(2
N\ / ey 3|8|2(5|=
SEE_ HEAVY DUTY o|z|e|e
AN —— S PAVEMENT DETAL  \ ™~ olele|e
Y S —_—— FOR DRIVE LANES DARK SKY COMPLIANT LED alalela
R \ POLE MOUNTED LIGHTING AT EIEIEIE
e e \ 12’ MOUNTING HEIGHT (TYP.) b4 b b
=g / OISTRICT ;
alal-|5
- RENEH
BERS
g
WETLAND UMITS
; | DEUNEATED BY DELTA
ENGINEERS ON 8/12/2021
=z
<
i
a
L
=
(%]

FUTURE GRAVEL
PARKING AREA

LS g

PROPOSED CABIN.
(TYP. OF 5)

DECORATIVE
LGHTING (TYP.)

TR
AR

SALLY PORT VIEW
7828 NYS ROUTE 12E
TOWN OF LYME
JEFFERSON COUNTY

—_— -APPROXIMATE
: MHW. 247.3

DATE:
AUGUST 2021

THREE MILE BAY - LAKE ONTARIO

Bl
C-102

_P s
T 1 =40" PUCCURACES N THE STATED
SCALE: 1740 AR ROPROOUCID BT




PROJECT AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION
(Watertown Renewables, LLC — North Project)

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency was convened
on Thursday, September 1, 2022 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 09.01.2022.06

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 1) APPOINTING WATERTOWN
RENEWABLES, LLC, FOR ITSELF AND/OR ON BEHALF OF ONE OR
MORE ENTITIES TO BE FORMED (COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY”)
AS ITS AGENT TO UNDERTAKE A CERTAIN PROJECT (AS MORE
FULLY DESCRIBED BELOW); (ii) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF AN AGENT AGREEMENT, LEASE AGREEMENT,
LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, PAYMENT-IN-LIEU-OF-TAX AGREEMENT
AND RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT; (iii)
AUTHORIZING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
TO THE COMPANY (AS FURTHER DEFINED HEREIN); AND (iv)
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH
RESPECT TO THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, (the
“Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the
“Agency”) was created with the authority and power to promote, develop, encourage and assist
in acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing
industrial, manufacturing, warehousing, commercial, research, and recreational facilities as
authorized by the Act, and in connection therewith to issue its revenue bonds, and/or enter into
straight lease transactions and provide other forms of financial assistance; and

WHEREAS, WATERTOWN RENEWABLES, LLC, for itself and/or for an entity or
entities to be formed (collectively, the “Company™), has submitted an application to the Agency
requesting the Agency's assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the
acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in approximately 20.1 acres of real property
located at 22088 County Route 60 in the Town of Watertown, New York (the “Land”, being
more particularly described as a portion of tax parcel No. 082.07-1-2.1); (ii) the planning, design,
construction and operation of (a) a 3.5MWac PV solar electrical generation system, including
panel foundations, inverters, transformers, interconnect wiring, utility connections, sitework,
landscaping, fencing, security and related improvements, and (b) a 2.85 MWac battery storage
system, including related foundations, interconnect wiring, utility connections, and related
improvements (collectively, the “Improvements™); (iii) the acquisition of and installation in and
around the Land and Improvements by the Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other
items of tangible personal property (the “Equipment”; and, collectively with the Land and the

Page 1
-205-



Improvements, the “Facility”); and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the
meaning of subdivision (15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain
a leasehold interest in the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility
back to the Company (the “Straight Lease Transaction™); and

WHEREAS, on August 4, 2022, the Agency adopted an initial resolution (the “Initial
Project Resolution”) which (i) accepted the Company’s application, (ii) authorized the
scheduling and conduct of a public hearing in compliance with the Act, (iii) described the
contemplated forms of financial assistance to be provided by the Agency (the “Financial
Assistance”, as described herein); (iv) adopted certain findings with respect to the New York
State Environmental Quality Review Act, Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and
the regulations adopted pursuant thereto at 6 NYCRR Par 617, as amended (collectively referred
to as “SEQRA™); and (v) authorized the negotiation of an Agent and Financial Assistance and
Project Agreement (the “Agent Agreement”), Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”),
Leaseback Agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”) and Payment-in-lieu-of-Tax agreement (the
“PILOT Agreement”) to be entered into with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Initial Project Resolution, the Agency published and
forwarded a Notice of Public Hearing to the Town of Watertown (the “Town”), the County of
Jefferson (the “County”), and the Watertown City School District (the “School”, and together
with the Town and County, the “Affected Tax Jurisdictions™) at least ten (10) days prior to said
Public Hearing are attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency held a public hearing on
August 22, 2022 at 1:30 p.m., local time, at Town of Watertown Municipal Building, 22867
County Route 67, Watertown, New York 13601 with respect to the Project (the “Public
Hearing”) and the proposed Financial Assistance (as further defined herein) being contemplated
by the Agency whereat interested parties were provided a reasonable opportunity, both orally and
in writing, to present their views, a copy of the minutes of the Public Hearing also being attached
hereto within Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the foregoing, the Agency desires to authorize (i) the
appointment of the Company as agent of the Agency to undertake the Project; (ii) the execution
and delivery of the Agent Agreement, Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement, the PILOT
Agreement, and related documents; and (iii) the provision of the Financial Assistance to the
Company, which shall include a partial real property tax abatement through the execution of an
agreement with the Agency regarding payments in lieu of real property taxes to be made for the
benefit of the Affected Tax Jurisdictions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

Page 2
-206-



(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to (i) acquire title to or
other interest in the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment constituting the Facility, (ii)
lease or sell the Agency’s interest in the Land, Improvements and Equipment constituting the
Facility to the Company pursuant to a lease agreement or sale agreement, and (iii) enter into a
Straight Lease Transaction with the Company; and

(C)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to undertake the
Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in the Town, which is located within
Jefferson County, New York, and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in
the Act; and

(D)  The Project will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of the Company or
any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area of the State of New York (the “State”)
to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the
Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State; and the Agency
hereby finds that, based on the Company’s Application, to the extent occupants are relocating
from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project
occupants from removing such other facility or plant to a location outside the State and/or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their
respective industries.

Section 2. Subject to (i) the Company executing the Agent Agreement and/or
Leaseback Agreement, and (ii) the delivery to the Agency of a binder, certificate or other
evidence of liability insurance policy for the Project satisfactory to the Agency, the Agency
hereby authorizes the Company to proceed with the acquisition, renovation, construction,
reconstruction, rehabilitation and equipping of the Project and hereby appoints the Company as
the true and lawful agent of the Agency: (i) to acquire, construct and equip the Project; (ii) to
make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any contracts, orders, receipts, writings and
instructions, as the stated agent for the Agency with the authority to delegate such agency, in
whole or in part, to agents, subagents, contractors, and subcontractors of such agents and
subagents and to such other parties as the Company chooses; and (iii) in general, to do all things
which may be requisite or proper for completing the Project, all with the same powers and the
same validity that the Agency could do if acting in its own behalf; provided, however, the Agent
Agreement shall expire on December 31, 2023 (unless extended for good cause by the Executive
Director of the Agency).

Section 3. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director (or Deputy
Executive Director) of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute
and deliver the Agent Agreement, Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, PILOT Agreement,
PILOT Mortgage, and related documents with such changes as shall be approved by the
Chairman, Vice Chairman, the Executive Director and counsel to the Agency upon execution.

Page 3

-207-



Section 4. The Chairman (or Vice Chairman), Executive Director (or Deputy
Executive Director) of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute
and deliver any mortgage, assignment of leases and rents, security agreement, UCC-1 Financing
Statements and all documents reasonably contemplated by these resolutions or required by any
lender identified by the Company (the “Lender”) up to a maximum principal amount necessary
to undertake the Project, acquire the Facility and/or finance or refinance equipment and other
personal property and related transactional costs (hereinafter with the Straight Lease Documents,
the “Agency Documents”); and, where appropriate, the Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the
Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Agency to the Agency Documents and to
attest the same, all with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions as the Chairman (or
Vice Chairman), Executive Director (or Deputy Executive Director) of the Agency shall
approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman (or Vice Chairman), Executive Director (or
Deputy Executive Director) of the Agency to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval;
provided, that, in all events, recourse against the Agency is limited to the Agency's interest in the
Project.

Section 3. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 6. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolutions was duly put to vote on roll
call, which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.
David J. Converse
John Jennings
William W. Johnson
Lisa L'Huillier

W. Edward Walldroff
Paul J. Warneck

The resolutions were thereupon duly adopted.

Page 4
-208-



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) ss:

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of the Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Jefferson
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) including the resolution contained
therein, held on September 1, 2022, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the
same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth
therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same relates to the subject matters therein

referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

- I FURTHER CERTIFY that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal of said Agency this __
day of ,2022. '

W. Edward Walldroff, (Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Page 5

-209-



EXHIBIT A
PUBLIC HEARING MATERIALS

Pace 6
-210-



800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601

ph: 315.782.5865 / 800.553.4111
fx: 315.782.7915

Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

www.jcida.com

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

August 11, 2022

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL/
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

To:  The Chief Executive Officers of
Affected Tax Jurisdictions on Schedule A

Re:  Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Watertown Renewables, LLC — North Project

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Please note that on Monday, August 22, 2022 at 1:30 p.m. local time, at the Town of
Watertown Municipal Building, 22867 County Route 67, Watertown, New York 13601, the
Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) will conduct a public hearing
regarding the above-referenced project. Enclosed is a copy of the Notice of Public Hearing
describing the Project and the financial assistance contemplated by the Agency. The Notice has
been submitted to the Watertown Daily Times for publication.

You are welcome to attend such hearing at which time you will have an opportunity to
review the project application and present your views, both orally and in writing, with respect to
the project. We are providing this notice to you, pursuant to General Municipal Law Section
859-(a), as the chief executive officer of an affected tax jurisdiction within which the project is

located.

Very truly yours,

JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

The JCIDA is an equal opportunity provider, and employer. To file a complaint of discrimination, write: USDA, Director; Office of Civil Rights,
1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD).

-211-



Schedule A

Affected Tax Jurisdiction Officials

Jefferson County, New York

Attn: William Johnson, Leg. Chairman,
Jefferson County

195 Arsenal Street

Watertown, New York 13601

Watertown City School District
Attn: Jason Harrington, Chair, BOE
1351 Washington Street, P.O. Box 586
Watertown, New York 13601

Town of Watertown, New York

Attn: Joel Bartlett, Town Supervisor
Town of Watertown Municipal Building
22867 County Route 67

Watertown, New York 13601

Jefferson County, New York

Attn: Robert Hagemann, County Admin.
Jefferson County

195 Arsenal Street

Watertown, New York 13601

Watertown City School District
Attn: Patricia LaBarr, Superintendent
1351 Washington Street, P.O. Box 586
Watertown, New York 13601

-212-



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of the New
York General Municipal Law (the “Act”) will be held by the Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency (the “Agency”) on August 22, 2022 at 1:30 p.m. at the Town of Watertown
Municipal Building, 22867 County Route 67, Watertown, New York 13601 in connection with the

matter described below.

WATERTOWN RENEWABLES, LLC, for itself and/or for an entity or entities to be
formed (collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an application to the Agency requesting the
Agency's assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the
Agency of a leasehold interest in approximately 20.1 acres of real property located at 22088
County Route 60 in the Town of Watertown, New York (the “Land”, being more particularly
described as a portion of tax parcel No. 082.07-1-2.1); (ii) the planning, design, construction and
operation of (a) a 3.5MWac PV solar electrical generation system, including panel foundations,
inverters, transformers, interconnect wiring, utility connections, sitework, landscaping, fencing,
security and related improvements, and (b) a 2.85 MWac battery storage system, including related
foundations, interconnect wiring, utility connections, and related improvements (collectively, the
“Improvements”); (iii) the acquisition of and installation in and around the Land and
Improvements by the Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other items of tangible
personal property (the “Equipment”; and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the
“Facility”); and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision
(15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in
the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility back to the Company (the
“Straight Lease Transaction”).

The Agency is contemplating providing financial assistance to the Company with respect
to the Project (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”) in the form of a partial real property tax
abatement through a payment-in-lieu-of-tax agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Company would make payments in lieu of real property taxes to the Agency for the
benefit of each affected tax jurisdiction (the “Affected Tax Jurisdictions™).

In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, a representative of the Agency will be at the
above-stated time and place to present a copy of the Company’s project Application (including a
cost-benefit analysis), which is also available for viewing on the Agency’s website at: JCIDA -
Jefferson County, NY Economic Development. The Agency also encourages all interested parties
to submit written comments to the Agency, which will all be included within the public hearing
record. Any written comments may be sent to Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency,
800 Starbuck Avenue, Watertown, New York 13601, Attn: David Zembiec, Chief Executive
Officer and/or via email at dzembiec@jcida.com.

Dated: August 13, 2022 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

-213-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Public Hearing Minutes
August 22,2022

The Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency held a public hearing at 1:30 p.m.
Monday, August 22, 2022, at the Town of Watertown Municipal Building, 122867
County Route 67, Watertown, New York, and via live stream for Watertown
Renewables, LLC (North Site) for a Straight Lease transaction.

Project Information: -

WATERTOWN RENEWABLES, LLC, for itself and/or for an entity or entities to be
formed (collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an application to the Agency
requesting the Agency's assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i)
the acquisition by the Agency of aleasehold interest in approximately 20.1 acres of real
property located at 22088 County Route 60 in the Town of Watertown, New York (the
“Land”, being more particularly described as a portion of tax parcel No. 082.07-1-2.1);
(it) the planning, design, construction and operation of (a) a 3.5MWac PV solar electrical
generation system, including panel foundations, inverters, transformers, interconnect
wiring, utility connections, sitework, landscaping, fencing, security and related
improvements, and (b) a 2.85 MWac battery storage system, including related
foundations, interconnect wiring, utility connections, and related improvements
(collectively, the “Improvements™); (iii) the acquisition of and installation in and around
the Land and Improvements by the Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other
items of tangible personal property (the “Equipment”; and, collectively with the Land and
the Improvements, the “Facility”); and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction
(within the meaning of subdivision (15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the
Agency will retain a leasehold interest in the Facility for a period of time and sublease
such interest in the Facility back to the Company (the “Straight Lease Transaction”).

Staff: Marshall Weir, Deputy CEO

Public Present: None.

Mr. Weir opened the hearing at 1:30 p.m. and read the public hearing rules and public
hearing notice. He reviewed the financial assistance for the project as well as the cost
benefit analysis. He said the cost benefit analysis shows a 11:1 benefit to cost ratio. The
estimated costs of exemptions show a discounted value of $477,251 with total benefits to

state and region of $5,411,620.

At 1:36 p. /,Wz closed the hearing.

Marshall Weir
Hearing Officer

-214-



PROJECT AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION
(Watertown Renewables, LLC — South Project)

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency was convened
on Thursday, September 1, 2022 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 09.01.2022.07

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (1) APPOINTING WATERTOWN
RENEWABLES, LLC, FOR ITSELF AND/OR ON BEHALF OF ONE OR
MORE ENTITIES TO BE FORMED (COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY”)
AS ITS AGENT TO UNDERTAKE A CERTAIN PROJECT (AS MORE
FULLY DESCRIBED BELOW); (ii) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF AN AGENT AGREEMENT, LEASE AGREEMENT,
LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, PAYMENT-IN-LIEU-OF-TAX AGREEMENT
AND RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT; (iii)
AUTHORIZING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
TO THE COMPANY (AS FURTHER DEFINED HEREIN); AND (iv)
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH
RESPECT TO THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, (the
“Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the
“Agency”) was created with the authority and power to promote, develop, encourage and assist
in acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing
industrial, manufacturing, warehousing, commercial, research, and recreational facilities as
authorized by the Act, and in connection therewith to issue its revenue bonds, and/or enter into
straight lease transactions and provide other forms of financial assistance; and

WHEREAS, WATERTOWN RENEWABLES, LLC, for itself and/or for an entity or
entities to be formed (collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an application to the Agency
requesting the Agency's assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the
acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in approximately 17.83 acres of real property
located at 22088 County Route 60 in the Town of Watertown, New York (the “Land”, being
more particularly described as a portion of tax parcel No. 082.07-1-2.1); (ii) the planning, design,
construction and operation of (a) a 3.5MWac PV solar electrical generation system, including
panel foundations, inverters, transformers, interconnect wiring, utility connections, sitework,
landscaping, fencing, security and related improvements, and (b) a 2.85 MWac battery storage
system, including related foundations, interconnect wiring, utility connections, and related
improvements (collectively, the “Improvements™); (iii) the acquisition of and installation in and
around the Land and Improvements by the Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other
items of tangible personal property (the “Equipment”; and, collectively with the Land and the

Pace 1
-215-



Improvements, the “Facility”); and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the
meaning of subdivision (15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain
a leasehold interest in the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility
back to the Company (the “Straight Lease Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, on August 4, 2022, the Agency adopted an initial resolution (the “Initial
Project Resolution”) which (i) accepted the Company’s application, (ii) authorized the
scheduling and conduct of a public hearing in compliance with the Act, (iii) described the
contemplated forms of financial assistance to be provided by the Agency (the “Financial
Assistance”, as described herein); (iv) adopted certain findings with respect to the New York
State Environmental Quality Review Act, Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and
the regulations adopted pursuant thereto at 6 NYCRR Par 617, as amended (collectively referred
to as “SEQRA™); and (v) authorized the negotiation of an Agent and Financial Assistance and
Project Agreement (the “Agent Agreement”), Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”),
Leaseback Agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”) and Payment-in-lieu-of-Tax agreement (the
“PILOT Agreement”) to be entered into with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Initial Project Resolution, the Agency published and
forwarded a Notice of Public Hearing to the Town of Watertown (the “Town”), the County of
Jefferson (the “County”), and the Watertown City School District (the “School”, and together
with the Town and County, the “Affected Tax Jurisdictions™) at least ten (10) days prior to said
Public Hearing are attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency held a public hearing on
August 22, 2022 at 1:45 p.m., local time, at Town of Watertown Municipal Building, 22867
County Route 67, Watertown, New York 13601 with respect to the Project (the “Public
Hearing”) and the proposed Financial Assistance (as further defined herein) being contemplated
by the Agency whereat interested parties were provided a reasonable opportunity, both orally and
in writing, to present their views, a copy of the minutes of the Public Hearing also being attached
hereto within Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the foregoing, the Agency desires to authorize (i) the
appointment of the Company as agent of the Agency to undertake the Project; (ii) the execution
and delivery of the Agent Agreement, Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement, the PILOT
Agreement, and related documents; and (iii) the provision of the Financial Assistance to the
Company, which shall include a partial real property tax abatement through the execution of an
agreement with the Agency regarding payments in lieu of real property taxes to be made for the
benefit of the Affected Tax Jurisdictions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

Page 2
-216-



(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to (i) acquire title to or
other interest in the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment constituting the Facility, (ii)
lease or sell the Agency’s interest in the Land, Improvements and Equipment constituting the
Facility to the Company pursuant to a lease agreement or sale agreement, and (iii) enter into a
Straight Lease Transaction with the Company; and

(C)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to undertake the
Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in the Town, which is located within
Jefferson County, New York, and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in
the Act; and

(D)  The Project will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of the Company or
any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area of the State of New York (the “State”)
to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the
Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State; and the Agency
hereby finds that, based on the Company’s Application, to the extent occupants are relocating
from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project
occupants from removing such other facility or plant to a location outside the State and/or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their
respective industries.

Section 2. Subject to (i) the Company executing the Agent Agreement and/or
Leaseback Agreement, and (ii) the delivery to the Agency of a binder, certificate or other
evidence of liability insurance policy for the Project satisfactory to the Agency, the Agency
hereby authorizes the Company to proceed with the acquisition, renovation, construction,
reconstruction, rehabilitation and equipping of the Project and hereby appoints the Company as
the true and lawful agent of the Agency: (i) to acquire, construct and equip the Project; (ii) to
make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any contracts, orders, receipts, writings and
instructions, as the stated agent for the Agency with the authority to delegate such agency, in
whole or in part, to agents, subagents, contractors, and subcontractors of such agents and
subagents and to such other parties as the Company chooses; and (iii) in general, to do all things
which may be requisite or proper for completing the Project, all with the same powers and the
same validity that the Agency could do if acting in its own behalf; provided, however, the Agent
Agreement shall expire on December 31, 2023 (unless extended for good cause by the Executive

Director of the Agency).

Section 3. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director (or Deputy
Executive Director) of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute
and deliver the Agent Agreement, Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, PILOT Agreement,
PILOT Mortgage, and related documents with such changes as shall be approved by the
Chairman, Vice Chairman, the Executive Director and counsel to the Agency upon execution.

Page 3
-217-



Section 4. The Chairman (or Vice Chairman), Executive Director (or Deputy
Executive Director) of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute
and deliver any mortgage, assignment of leases and rents, security agreement, UCC-1 Financing
Statements and all documents reasonably contemplated by these resolutions or required by any
lender identified by the Company (the “Lender”) up to a maximum principal amount necessary
to undertake the Project, acquire the Facility and/or finance or refinance equipment and other
personal property and related transactional costs (hereinafter with the Straight Lease Documents,
the “Agency Documents”); and, where appropriate, the Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the
Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Agency to the Agency Documents and to
attest the same, all with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions as the Chairman (or
Vice Chairman), Executive Director (or Deputy Executive Director) of the Agency shall
approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman (or Vice Chairman), Executive Director (or
Deputy Executive Director) of the Agency to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval;
provided, that, in all events, recourse against the Agency is limited to the Agency's interest in the
Project.

Section 3. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 6. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolutions was duly put to vote on roll
call, which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.
David J. Converse
John Jennings
William W. Johnson
Lisa L'Huillier

W. Edward Walldroff
Paul J. Warneck

The resolutions were thereupon duly adopted.

Page 4
-218-



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) ss:

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of the Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Jefferson
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) including the resolution contained
therein, held on September 1, 2022, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the
same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth
therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same relates to the subject matters therein
referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal of said Agency this __
day of ,2022.

W. Edward Walldroff, (Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Page 5
-219-



EXHIBIT A
PUBLIC HEARING MATERIALS

Page 6
-220-



800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 1360l

ph: 315.782.5865 / 800.5534111
fx: 315.782.7915

Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

www.jcida.com

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

August 11, 2022

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL/
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

To:  The Chief Executive Officers of
Affected Tax Jurisdictions on Schedule A

Re:  Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Watertown Renewables, LLC — South Project

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Please note that on Monday, August 22, 2022 at 1:45 p.m. local time, at the Town of
Watertown Municipal Building, 22867 County Route 67, Watertown, New York 13601, the
Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) will conduct a public hearing
regarding the above-referenced project. Enclosed is a copy of the Notice of Public Hearing
describing the Project and the financial assistance contemplated by the Agency. The Notice has
been submitted to the Watertown Daily Times for publication.

You are welcome to attend such hearing at which time you will have an opportunity to
review the project application and present your views, both orally and in writing, with respect to
the project. We are providing this notice to you, pursuant to General Municipal Law Section
859-(a), as the chief executive officer of an affected tax jurisdiction within which the project is

located.
Very truly yours,

JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

The JCIDA is an equal opportunity provider, and employer. To file a complaint of discrimination, write: USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights,
1400 Independence Avenue, SW., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD).

-221-



Schedule A

Affected Tax Jurisdiction Officials

Jefferson County, New York

Attn: William Johnson, Leg. Chairman
Jefferson County

195 Arsenal Street

Watertown, New York 13601

Watertown City School District
Attn: Jason Harrington, Chair, BOE
1351 Washington Street, P.O. Box 586
Watertown, New York 13601

Town of Watertown, New York

Attn: Joel Bartlett, Town Supervisor
Town of Watertown Municipal Building
22867 County Route 67

Watertown, New York 13601

Jefferson County, New York

Attn: Robert Hagemann, County Admin.
Jefferson County

195 Arsenal Street

Watertown, New York 13601

Watertown City School District
Attn: Patricia LaBarr, Superintendent
1351 Washington Street, P.O. Box 586
Watertown, New York 13601

-222-



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of the New
York General Municipal Law (the “Act”) will be held by the Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency (the “Agency”) on August 22, 2022 at 1:45 p.m. at the Town of Watertown
Municipal Building, 22867 County Route 67, Watertown, New York 13601 in connection with the

matter described below.

WATERTOWN RENEWABLES, LLC, for itself and/or for an entity or entities to be
formed (collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an application to the Agency requesting the
Agency's assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the
Agency of a leasehold interest in approximately 17.83 acres of real property located at 22088
County Route 60 in the Town of Watertown, New York (the “Land”, being more particularly
described as a portion of tax parcel No. 082.07-1-2.1); (ii) the planning, design, construction and
operation of (a) a 3.5MWac PV solar electrical generation system, including panel foundations,
inverters, transformers, interconnect wiring, utility connections, sitework, landscaping, fencing,
security and related improvements, and (b) a 2.85 MWac battery storage system, including related
foundations, interconnect wiring, utility connections, and related improvements (collectively, the
“Improvements”); (iii) the acquisition of and installation in and around the Land and
Improvements by the Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other items of tangible
personal property (the “Equipment”; and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the
“Facility”); and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision
(15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in
the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility back to the Company (the
“Straight Lease Transaction”).

The Agency is contemplating providing financial assistance to the Company with respect
to the Project (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”) in the form of a partial real property tax
abatement through a payment-in-lieu-of-tax agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Company would make payments in lieu of real property taxes to the Agency for the
benefit of each affected tax jurisdiction (the “Affected Tax Jurisdictions™).

In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, a representative of the Agency will be at the
above-stated time and place to present a copy of the Company’s project Application (including a
cost-benefit analysis), which is also available for viewing on the Agency’s website at: JCIDA -
Jefferson County, NY Economic Development. The Agency also encourages all interested parties
to submit written comments to the Agency, which will all be included within the public hearing
record. Any written comments may be sent to Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency,
800 Starbuck Avenue, Watertown, New York 13601, Attn: David Zembiec, Chief Executive
~ Officer and/or via email at dzembiec@jcida.com.

Dated: August 13, 2022 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
. DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

-223-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Public Hearing Minutes
August 22, 2022

The Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency held a public hearing at 1:45 p.m.
Monday, August 22, 2022, at the Town of Watertown Municipal Building, 122867
County Route 67, Watertown, New York, and via live stream for Watertown
Renewables, LLC (South Site) for a Straight Lease transaction.

Project Information:

WATERTOWN RENEWABLES, LLC, for itself and/or for an entity or entities to be
formed (collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an application to the Agency
requesting the Agency's assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i)
the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in approximately 17.83 acres of real
property located at 22088 County Route 60 in the Town of Watertown, New York (the
“Land”, being more particularly described as a portion of tax parcel No. 082.07-1-2.1);
(ii) the planning, design, construction and operation of (a) a 3.5MWac PV solar electrical
generation system, including panel foundations, inverters, transformers, interconnect
wiring, utility connections, sitework, landscaping, fencing, security and related
improvements, and (b) a 2.85 MWac battery storage system, including related
foundations, interconnect wiring, utility connections, and related improvements
(collectively, the “Improvements™); (iii) the acquisition of and installation in and around
the Land and Improvements by the Company of machinery, equipment, fixtures and other
items of tangible personal property (the “Equipment”; and, collectively with the Land and
the Improvements, the “Facility”); and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction
(within the meaning of subdivision (15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the
Agency will retain a leasehold interest in the Facility for a period of time and sublease
such interest in the Facility back to the Company (the “Straight Lease Transaction”).

Staff: Marshall Weir, Deputy CEO
Public Present: None.

Mr. Weir opened the hearing at 1:45 p.m. and read the public hearing rules and public
hearing notice. He reviewed the financial assistance for the project as well as the cost
benefit analysis. He said the cost benefit analysis shows at 11:1 benefit to cost ratio. The
estimated costs of exemptions show a discounted value of $493,555 with total benefits to

state and region of $5,264,194.

At 1:51 p.m., Mr. Weir closed the hearing.

/-

Marshall Weir
Hearing Officer

-224-



uesqy - 4

pesnoxg- &

jussald - g’

s|ejol

|ned “joautepn

PJEMP3 M “HOJPI[EM

esI 4al|[inH,]

Wel||IM ‘uosuyor

uyor ‘sbujuuap

piAeQ ‘©si9AU0)

alojo|o)o)o) o)~
o) Wl w oo <| o &
ol ol oo oo o o~
ol oo o oo o~
oo <] 0| o] < 0] 0
ol Wl W oo ol o w
oo oo) oo~
alolo|o)o oo~

Hoqoy ‘ossely

29( AON 190 desg

0)

3
<
S
=

unp Aey

S
<

e\ qo4 uer aweN

Sduepusny pleog zzoe

598G-28/ (S1€)
LO9EL AN ‘Umouaiepn
008 ®ng ‘enusAy onqlels 008
Aousby yuswdojeasq |ewysnpuj unon uosiaysp



	doc01521820220830144026
	doc01521920220830144200

